

BEFORE THE DU PAGE COUNTY  
AD-HOC ADULT BUSINESS COMMITTEE

AD-HOC ADULT BUSINESS COMMITTEE

PUBLIC HEARING

January 29, 2019

12:30 o'clock p.m.

PROCEEDINGS HAD and testimony taken before the  
DU PAGE COUNTY AD-HOC ADULT BUSINESS COMMITTEE, taken at the  
DuPage County Administration Building, 421 South County Farm  
Road, Wheaton, Illinois, before Megan L. Romak, CSR.

Ad-Hoc Adult Business Committee  
January 29, 2019

1 MEMBERS PRESENT:

2 MS. JULIE RENEHAN, Chair.

3 MS. DAWN DESART, Member.

4 MR. JAMES ZAY, Member.

5 MR. SAM TORNATORE, Member.

6 MR. TIM ELLIOTT, Member.

7 MR. SEAN NOONAN, Member.

8

9 ALSO PRESENT:

10 MR. CONOR MC CARTHY

11 MR. PAUL HOSS, Planning and Zoning Administration  
Coordinator.

12

13 MR. ANTHONY HAYMAN, Assistant State's Attorney.

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Ad-Hoc Adult Business Committee  
January 29, 2019

3

1 CHAIR RENEHAN: Good afternoon. My name is Julie  
2 Renehan. I'm the Chair of the newly formed Ad-Hoc Adult  
3 Business Committee. The time is now 12:30 p.m., and I call  
4 this meeting to order.

5 Clerk, can you take the roll, please?

6 THE CLERK: Sure. Member DeSart?

7 MEMBER DESART: Here.

8 THE CLERK: Member Zay?

9 MEMBER ZAY: Here.

10 THE CLERK: Member Tornatore?

11 MEMBER TORNATORE: Here.

12 THE CLERK: Member Elliott?

13 MEMBER ELLIOTT: Here.

14 THE CLERK: Member Noonan?

15 MEMBER NOONAN: Here.

16 THE CLERK: Chair Renehan?

17 CHAIR RENEHAN: Here.

18 We have a quorum. Looks like everybody is here,  
19 so let me proceed to my remarks.

20 Thanks all for coming out on such a cold day. I  
21 appreciate it. I would like to start by providing you with  
22 the simple goals of this committee, the objectives, and  
23 offer that you all weigh in with your thoughts as well.

24 I'd like to establish the process, first of all,

1 moving forward. The public comment area and the acceptance  
2 of evidence of testimony provided to this committee. Please  
3 note that we do have a court reporter to accept all of our  
4 testimony going forward.

5           First, regarding goals and objectives. Over the  
6 past year the County Board has received complaints from its  
7 residents regarding the negative secondary impacts of adult  
8 business uses in unincorporated DuPage County. The purpose  
9 of these hearings is to provide an opportunity for testimony  
10 from experts and the public. The Committee will then  
11 develop a comprehensive plan counteracting the negative  
12 secondary impacts of adult businesses.

13           To be clear, the purpose of the hearing is not to  
14 impose undue restrictions on constitutionally protected  
15 conduct. Regarding process is my intention to hold meetings  
16 on the second and fourth Tuesdays of the month at 12:30 p.m.  
17 following County Board meetings. In addition, it might be  
18 necessary to hold special-call meetings in the evening to  
19 accommodate the public which we will schedule as needed.

20           Over the next series of meetings, the Committee  
21 anticipates hearing from law enforcement, public health  
22 officials, social service providers, real estate  
23 professionals, and other experts regarding the regulation of  
24 adult businesses in DuPage County. The Committee will hear

1 testimony and impose questions to the invited witnesses and  
2 as with all County Board committee meetings, anyone may  
3 offer public comment; however, the comment is limited to 3  
4 minutes per person and a total of 30 minutes total.

5 Additionally, members of the community are more than welcome  
6 to submit written statements on issues and, in fact, are  
7 very much encouraged to do so.

8           These proceedings will be transcribed into a  
9 written record upon which the full County Board will rely on  
10 enacting legislation or ordinances which arise from these  
11 hearings.

12           From time to time the Committee may receive  
13 studies, case law, and other exhibits which will be marked  
14 and entered into the record by witnesses.

15           Today's meeting we are going to hear from  
16 assistant state's attorney, Tony Hayman, providing  
17 information regarding the current status of the laws  
18 impacting adult business uses in DuPage County, and Paul  
19 Hoss -- actually Paul is going to be first, but DuPage  
20 County Planning and Zoning Administrative Coordinator will  
21 also provide information about the current zoning ordinances  
22 and the tools that we currently have available in DuPage  
23 County to combat the negative impacts of adult businesses.

24           That concludes my remarks. Let's open up the

1 meeting to public comment. Our first speaker is Pastor  
2 Kelly Brady?

3 PASTOR BRADY: Yes.

4 CHAIR RENEHAN: So a three-minute limit, so go  
5 ahead.

6 PASTOR BRADY: I'll be short and sweet.

7 My name is Kelly Brady. I'm a resident on  
8 the north side of Wheaton, 432 Ranch Road, and I serve  
9 as senior pastor of Glen Ellyn Bible Church, 501  
10 Hillside, Glen Ellyn, in downtown Glen Ellyn.

11 So first let me say thank you for convening.  
12 I understand this is a newly formed committee and  
13 appreciate your service in this effort. I attended a  
14 meeting last week, I believe it was last Wednesday, a  
15 sex trafficking meeting last Wednesday evening. I  
16 believe it was also the first of its kind hosted by  
17 the village president of Glen Ellyn and Tim Elliott.  
18 Thank you so much for doing that. And others were  
19 there. Julie, I know you were there, so thank you for  
20 that.

21 I noticed the business -- my interest is  
22 about a month old. I think I'm actually late to the  
23 game. I realize that. But the business on Gary  
24 Avenue in Wheaton across from Wheaton Bowl in the last

1 month it kind of transformed going from windows that  
2 were open and you can see through them to darkened  
3 windows. There is no signage out front yet, but it's  
4 clear that their activities are counter to the  
5 community health in my opinion. So just a little bit  
6 of investigation and I now understand it's the Hot  
7 Shots, a photography business, that moved from North  
8 Avenue, and I assume everybody knows that here.

9 I would just urge the County Board to do what  
10 is necessary to address zoning issues. My best  
11 understanding is that the zoning has changed -- no,  
12 that the businesses have grown to understand how to  
13 navigate zoning restrictions such that they can plant  
14 or open closer to schools, but if you look at Google  
15 maps, it's easily, you know, it's high schoolers,  
16 Wheaton North high schoolers. I have one Wheaton  
17 North high schooler and when she plays spring sports  
18 this spring, she will be able to see the adult  
19 business there and they will be able to see her and  
20 there's a Montessori school nearby and just urge the  
21 County Board and offer whatever support I could offer  
22 to be a part of a constructive solution to see adult  
23 businesses restricted to industrial areas. I think  
24 would be the heart -- I would have, you know, more

1 legislative desires than that, but I understand if we  
2 can just restrict them away from residential areas,  
3 that would be ideal.

4 Thank you very much.

5 CHAIR RENEHAN: All right. Thank you, Pastor Brady,  
6 for coming out today.

7 Is there anybody else for public comment that's  
8 come in?

9 Okay. Seeing that there are no minutes, we now  
10 are going to proceed to staff presentations. Actually I  
11 think first, Paul, you're going to speak first.

12 So just a review. Paul is our DuPage County  
13 Planning and Zoning Administrative Coordinator, and he will  
14 provide information about the current scope of zoning  
15 ordinances and the tools that we have available currently.

16 So I need to swear you first and then we're going  
17 to have Tony Hayman. Can I swear both of you in at the same  
18 time?

19 MR. HOSS: Absolutely, yeah.

20 CHAIR RENEHAN: Okay.

21 (The oath was thereupon duly  
22 administered to the witnesses by  
23 the Chair.)

24 CHAIR RENEHAN: If I could just ask the Committee to



1 reserve all questions for the end of both of their  
2 testimony.

3 MR. HOSS: So just real briefly the reason that we  
4 were sworn in is that these are going to be transcribed  
5 meetings so that we want to make a record for you all and  
6 for the public so that when you are going through this  
7 process, we'll be posting all of the documents that we  
8 propose to tender to you along with the verbatim transcripts  
9 of these proceedings so that everybody can see exactly what  
10 the County is presenting and what the County is doing in  
11 these efforts. I'm going to be saying a few things that are  
12 self explanatory, but once again it's all for the record.

13 What I've handed out to you today is I've handed  
14 out my statement that I'm going to be going over very  
15 briefly and I've also handed out a document that's two  
16 pages. It's called the Ad-Hoc Committee on Adult Business  
17 Uses with today's date. This document is essentially our  
18 syllabus for proceeding forward with the various meetings  
19 and hearings that we're proposing to bring before you. It  
20 basically asks questions as to where we're at with the  
21 current state of zoning relative to adult business uses,  
22 what are the issues that we deal with on a regular basis  
23 with adult business land uses and issues.

24 You'll see, for instance, in the first column it

1 talks about the discussion items, it talks about some of the  
2 talking points, and it also talks about some of the issues  
3 that we face, and then the final column talks about some of  
4 the studies and some of the law that we propose to tender  
5 into evidence for you to review and make your considerations  
6 and deliberations upon. And then ultimately on the back  
7 page we want to bring to you a set of zoning and building  
8 regulations instead of just liquor control regulations. We  
9 want to bring to you a comprehensive regulatory program for  
10 adult business uses that includes not only zoning and  
11 building codes and liquor ordinances, but also possibly  
12 licensing regulations as well.

13           So all of the documentation, evidence, and  
14 testimony that we will be tendering to you will be in  
15 furtherance of showing what our issues are, how we deal with  
16 those issues on a daily basis not only from zoning but from  
17 the State's attorney's office, the sheriff's office, and the  
18 Health Department, but also bringing to you experts relative  
19 to how we might be able to develop new rules and regulations  
20 to help us in the operations of adult business uses. Like I  
21 say, this is just sort of a syllabus to walk you through how  
22 we propose to move forward in the next several meetings.

23           So with that my name is Paul Hoss. I am the  
24 Planning and Zoning Administration Coordinator with the

1 Building and Zoning Department of DuPage County. I've been  
2 with the County for approximately 27 years and in that time  
3 I've had the opportunity to interpret the zoning  
4 regulations, enforce them, and also make amendments to them  
5 relative to issues that we have out there and most notably  
6 adult business use amendments that we went through back in  
7 the early 2000s.

8 I also have, as part of the enforcement process,  
9 had the opportunity to testify and provide evidence relative  
10 to zoning and planning in our adjudication administration  
11 court which is our local -- I shouldn't say court, but local  
12 hearing program that we do internally here in the County.  
13 I've also testified in circuit court and also in federal  
14 court on land use cases.

15 So I'm here today, as the Chairman talked about,  
16 to give you my background or information on how we dealt  
17 with adult business uses in the 27 years I've been here with  
18 the County. One of the things that I often tell our staff  
19 and other people is that people don't -- in all my time  
20 here, I haven't had a situation where people wake up in the  
21 morning and say, "Hey, I own a piece of property. I think  
22 I'll call the County and see what I can do with it."

23 People inherently and intuitively realize that  
24 when they own property, especially in an unincorporated

1 area, they have this intuitive sense that they can do  
2 whatever they want with their property. We've heard it  
3 many, many times in the unincorporated area that, you know,  
4 I'm unincorporated so I should be able to do what I'd like  
5 to do with my property. And essentially they're right  
6 because you don't get your ability and your ability to own  
7 land or your rights to use land from county zoning  
8 regulations. You get them simply by owning the property.

9           The purpose of zoning regulations is to sort of  
10 set a safety net for land use and to regulate land use in  
11 such a way that it protects a compelling government  
12 interest. And if you look at the preamble to the County  
13 zoning ordinance, you'll see that the compelling government  
14 interest that zoning regulations attempt to control is  
15 generally public health, safety, welfare. And also when it  
16 comes to zoning land use is to protect property value and  
17 make sure that the property values at least stay constant or  
18 equal or hopefully evolve over time and go up.

19           You will find that in our zoning ordinance, but  
20 also you will -- we come up against, with adult business  
21 uses, this notion that while the government can have a  
22 compelling interest relative to health, safety, and welfare,  
23 there is also the ability for adult business uses and all of  
24 us to enjoy first amendment constitutional items, speech and

1 expression. And so when we are developing land use  
2 regulations on use, we have to be very cognizant of people's  
3 first amendment rights and particularly adult business use  
4 rights relative to speech and particularly expression. What  
5 I mean by that is the ability to express themselves in a  
6 legal way.

7           So when we come up against the juxtaposition of a  
8 government's interest relative to a first amendment right  
9 that someone enjoys, especially adult business use, we look  
10 to the courts and studies to try and figure out how we can  
11 address that.

12           There is a provision in the law that allows a  
13 government, in furtherance of its government interest, to  
14 look at the secondary impacts of adult business uses. Not  
15 look at the use itself because the use is legal. In our  
16 zoning ordinance we call out that the use is legal, but we  
17 have to look at the secondary-intended impacts of what adult  
18 businesses do. Look at perhaps where we have a  
19 concentration of adult business uses. Do we have higher  
20 crime rates? Do we have property values that are diminished  
21 by the operations of the use? Do we have a situation where  
22 we have juvenile delinquencies? Do we harm children because  
23 of the proximity to adult business use to schools and day  
24 cares and places of recreation like park districts and even

1 forest preserves?

2           So we've got to sort of balance those two  
3 interests there and the courts do allow us to balance those  
4 interests, but one of the things that we found is that  
5 zoning regulations and land use regulations generally deal  
6 with location of uses and hence in the zoning ordinance  
7 you'll see that we put like uses in like zoning districts;  
8 residential uses in residential, business in business, and  
9 industrial in industrial.

10           We also use zoning regulations to be able to  
11 create distance requirements or setbacks from uses that may  
12 have an impact on each other. Even with like uses where you  
13 have residential next to residential, we often have setback  
14 requirements so that we keep uses, even in like land uses,  
15 separate from one another. But that's generally where, and  
16 I'm over generalizing it, but that's generally where zoning  
17 stops. Location and distance requirements is the bulk of  
18 the requirements.

19           We have difficulty regulating the operations of  
20 the uses because land use really isn't intended to do that.  
21 So part of our issue with adult business uses is how do we  
22 regulate the operational aspects of adult business uses.  
23 Particularly in DuPage County we have seen, as the pastor  
24 pointed out, that some of the adult business uses have

1 evolved with their operations and programs to the point  
2 where they go beyond the reach of zoning regulations, just  
3 simply location and distance requirements, and that's one of  
4 the things that we struggle with with our zoning  
5 regulations.

6           One of the things that the County was confronted  
7 with back in the late 1990s, early 2000s is we saw that Cook  
8 County and some of the municipalities in Cook County had  
9 come up with much more stringent adult business use  
10 regulations that effectively forced some of those adult  
11 business uses to be pushed into DuPage County. The reason  
12 for that was several fold; one of those is that we have --  
13 we are -- if we were a municipality in the unincorporated  
14 area, we would be the eighth largest municipality in DuPage  
15 County -- I'm sorry, in the State of Illinois. We are the  
16 largest, in theory, municipality in DuPage County even  
17 larger than the Naperville and Aurora sections of DuPage  
18 County. We've got over 90,000 people.

19           MR. ELLIOTT: In the unincorporated area?

20           MR. HOSS: In the unincorporated area, yes. So if we  
21 just took the unincorporated area and created a municipality  
22 out of it, we would be by far the largest municipality in  
23 DuPage County with over 40,000 people. I think Wheaton is  
24 the next closest. So we have sort of the ingredients for

1 these adult business uses to come over into our county and  
2 start to operate.

3           One of the things I mentioned early on is that  
4 when people wake up and see that they own property or can  
5 lease property, they just go ahead and start doing it and  
6 wait for the County to react or wait for the government to  
7 react. Usually the way that we find out about it is through  
8 enforcement issues like people putting signage up, too much  
9 lighting, too much noise. In the case of adult business  
10 uses, they're a secondary impact that manifests themselves  
11 and we start to hear from neighbors, we start to hear from  
12 law enforcement officers that activity is going on there  
13 that is above and beyond the normal business operations.  
14 And so we have these people start operating and we've got to  
15 retroactively come in and try to determine whether or not  
16 it's an adult business use and then figure out how to handle  
17 it.

18           And once again our zoning ordinances fall short on  
19 the operational aspects of adult business use. So one of  
20 the things that -- as I said, what we found back in the  
21 1990s, late 1990s, we had a movement of about 11 to 12 adult  
22 business type uses located in the unincorporated area. We  
23 issued violation notices. We had Zoning Board of Appeal  
24 appeals. We had several court cases. And the adult



1 business uses range from strip clubs to bookstores to spas  
2 to massage parlors, things like that.

3           One of the things that we found that we needed to  
4 do was change our zoning ordinances. Right in the middle of  
5 working on that we were confronted with a prospective  
6 lawsuit from an organization called Palmetto Property. They  
7 represented -- I don't know that they represented, but their  
8 corporate name, Palmetto Property, they are known as the  
9 Diamonds Gentlemen's Club which is located out on North  
10 Avenue west of the county.

11           What I mean by prospectively, typically, as I said  
12 before, a property owner starts a development or starts a  
13 use and then we come in retroactively and engage in code  
14 enforcements. In this case they sued the County in federal  
15 court suggesting that the County's regulations relative to  
16 adult business uses were unconstitutional. At one point the  
17 Court found that the County zoning regulations were  
18 unconstitutional, and we didn't have a zoning ordinance for  
19 a short time. That was eventually paired down to just our  
20 ordinances relative to adult business uses and that set the  
21 County off on a two and a half, three year process to amend  
22 our zoning ordinances to the point where we engaged in the  
23 similar process that we're proposing in this exercise and  
24 that is that we brought in experts both in law enforcement

1 and adult business use operations, code enforcements, so on  
2 and so forth, and we showed the Zoning Board of Appeals and  
3 ultimately the County Board secondary impacts of adult  
4 business uses, and we ultimately developed regulations that  
5 were much stronger than we had before. Those regulations  
6 resulted in the County updating its zoning ordinance in 2004  
7 to include that all adult business uses had to be located in  
8 the industrial zoning districts because in industrial zoning  
9 districts you had activities that ameliorated or mitigated  
10 the impasse of adult business uses; 24-hour operations,  
11 security, lighting, so it made it a little bit safer for  
12 people who engage in adult business use not only for the  
13 citizens who were impacted by it because they weren't  
14 located in residential or commercial zoning districts  
15 anymore but also for the operators and the patrons and the  
16 employees using the facility as well. We found that a lot  
17 of secondary impacts include robbery, thefts, battery,  
18 assault between employees and the patrons of these  
19 facilities.

20           That's a similar type exercise that we're going to  
21 process as well providing, as I said earlier, documentation,  
22 evidence, case law, studies that talk about secondary  
23 impacts and how people in other jurisdictions deal with it.

24           One of the things that resulted in our text

1 amendment is that we were able to, once again, put adult  
2 business uses in all industrial jurisdictions to create a  
3 distance limitation between adult business uses and other  
4 adult business uses of 1,000 feet and also create distance  
5 requirements between adult uses and protected classes,  
6 places where children are readily present; schools, day  
7 cares, places of assembly, forest preserves, park districts.  
8 And we were able to put that legislation into place and its  
9 been supported to the point where ultimately federal courts  
10 found that our new regulations could be supported and  
11 constitution support.

12           Over the time period from 2005 to the present, we  
13 have seen, through Tony Hayman and the State's attorney's  
14 office action, a reduction in the number of adult business  
15 uses throughout the county from anywhere from 11 to 12 down  
16 to one legal adult business and that's located on Lake  
17 Street in the northwest corner of the County. That adult  
18 business use is there by federal court decree that was  
19 allowed in 1986, and it's the Zebulon Book Store, but that's  
20 the only legal adult business use we have in the county.

21           We have two other uses that are not technically  
22 adult business uses that you've heard about in various  
23 forms, and we are working to determine whether or not those  
24 adult business uses -- or those uses are indeed adult

1 business uses, and we're still working on those. But the  
2 important thing is that through these zoning codes we have,  
3 once again, whittled the number of adult business uses down  
4 to only one legal one and that was by court decree in the  
5 County.

6           Having said that, one of the things that we are  
7 sort of at crossroads here is that the zoning ordinance sort  
8 of has reached its limitations on dealing with the  
9 operations of adult business uses. And so we are looking  
10 through this process to develop, as I said, this  
11 comprehensive regulatory program that will include not only  
12 building and zoning and the liquor control ordinance, but  
13 also perhaps a licensing ordinance as well. And all three  
14 of those regulations combined deal with the operational  
15 impact and aspects of adult business use.

16           One of the things that is unique about this  
17 process is that we are finding that the operations of the  
18 adult business use is not only does adult business use in  
19 general not only have an impact on unsuspecting people who  
20 may live close to those uses, but they also have an impact  
21 on the operators of the adult business use. They have an  
22 impact on the employees of the adult business use and they  
23 have an impact on the patrons of the adult business use, so  
24 we are going to address those as well. It seems a little

1 bit counter-intuitive that we are addressing them relative  
2 to the use themselves, but that's where we found a lot of  
3 the secondary impacts are coming from. Robberies, assaults,  
4 burglaries, vandalism, things like that.

5           So it's our intention then moving forward over  
6 these next several weeks to once again provide you testimony  
7 and evidence and essentially bring before you in the next  
8 couple of weeks reports and studies that were conducted in  
9 other jurisdictions around the country that have similar  
10 demographics to DuPage County.

11           Generally we look to jurisdictions that are  
12 similar to DuPage County such as Washington County in  
13 Washington, Montgomery County out by Washington, D.C., and  
14 then San Diego County out in California. They have similar  
15 demographics, similar size. In some instances where the  
16 county is dense and in some parts of the county it's also as  
17 equally as rural in other parts of the county. We're  
18 bringing you the information relative to how those  
19 communities have dealt with that and have similar type  
20 issues that the County is experiencing.

21           We will also be bringing to you people from the  
22 Health Department to talk to you about some of the  
23 communicable diseases that are of concern relative to  
24 activities in adult business uses.

1           We will be bringing in law enforcement experts to  
2 talk with you about the actual incidents that occur in adult  
3 business uses and getting into specific things like I talked  
4 about like robberies and theft and assault and batteries and  
5 even going into prostitution as well.

6           We will also be bringing to you people who are  
7 advocates relative to human trafficking both people from the  
8 private sector and also possible law enforcement experts  
9 relative to not only the backside of adult business uses,  
10 meaning the people leaving the adult business use, but  
11 people coming into the adult business use and experts and  
12 some of these have been to -- I think the pastor mentioned  
13 he had been to some meetings where some of those people that  
14 we will have before us have already spoke and are talking  
15 about the relationship of human trafficking in terms of  
16 adult business uses.

17           We will also be bringing you experts on regulatory  
18 programs where people have developed licensing programs in  
19 other jurisdictions where we will have experts that talk to  
20 you about some of the programs that exist out there so that  
21 when you have this collective body of evidence, you will  
22 have the ability to hopefully be completely reformed as to  
23 what the issues are, how we might be able to address them  
24 and whether or not this comprehensive regulatory program

1 might be something that could work for DuPage County which  
2 would include, as I said, using and continue to use  
3 conventional regulations like building and zoning and liquor  
4 control but also licensing.

5           Just as an example, about a month and a half ago  
6 the County amended a zoning ordinance -- maybe two months  
7 ago amended the zoning ordinance to include the definition  
8 of adult business to be something beyond, you know, nudity  
9 and specified sexual activity but to include the notion that  
10 if you are holding your business out to people over the age  
11 of 18 only and people under the age of 18 can't use your  
12 services, the County Board now has identified that that type  
13 of use will automatically be considered adult business use  
14 irrespective of some of these other conventional things that  
15 we consider adult business uses.

16           So we will continue to sort of sharpen our zoning  
17 ordinance, but we think that attacking operational aspects  
18 of adult business uses might be better served with this  
19 comprehensive regulatory program.

20           I will put, Madam Chairman, this document which is  
21 sort of a schematic moving forward and also my statement on  
22 record as exhibits 1 and 2, Paul Hoss 01/29/19 Adult  
23 Business Use Ad-Hoc Committee.

24           CHAIR RENEHAN: Okay. Show accepted as exhibits 1

1 and 2 from Paul Hoss.

2 MR. HOSS: Does anybody have any questions of me at  
3 this time?

4 MR. ELLIOTT: Did I understand you to say that any  
5 business where people under 18 could not participate in the  
6 business or purchase their products is now an adult  
7 business?

8 MR. HOSS: So, yes, and there is an exemption to  
9 that.

10 MR. ELLIOTT: Is that exemption alcohol?

11 MR. HOSS: The exemption is if you have a license  
12 that allows you --

13 MR. ELLIOTT: Liquor license.

14 MR. HOSS: -- to do something like a liquor  
15 license --

16 MR. ELLIOTT: Gotcha. Okay.

17 MR. HOSS: -- then you are exempt from that  
18 regulation that says 18 and over.

19 MR. ELLIOTT: You got right where I was going with  
20 that.

21 MR. HOSS: So we put that in that provision. Once  
22 again that passed by the County Board a couple of months  
23 ago.

24 CHAIR RENEHAN: Paul, how do you know that we only



1 have two when really there's no licensing requiring them to  
2 get an adult business license, let's say?

3 MR. HOSS: As I said earlier on is that people just  
4 wake up in the morning and start doing something and we have  
5 to react to that. And the one -- the reason that we know we  
6 are down to at least one is that all the other ones that  
7 were, in theory, adult business uses because of their  
8 testimony in court that says here is what we do, we are able  
9 to either get them closed through court action or some of  
10 them have closed because of our adjudication hearing  
11 program. There are, as I mentioned before, two land uses  
12 out there that have the propriety through their operations  
13 to perhaps be an adult business use, but we have not been  
14 able to prove that up according to our zoning ordinance at  
15 this point. There may be a lot more actual adult business  
16 uses out there.

17 CHAIR RENEHAN: Right.

18 MR. HOSS: And so one of the things perhaps with a  
19 regulatory program, licensing program is that might cause  
20 people to have to come forward and get licensing and at that  
21 point we will know more about the operations of their use  
22 and then we can determine whether they are an adult business  
23 use and at that point determine if they are in the right  
24 zoning district for that. This is an attempt, also, to kind

1 of, you know, as you said, figure out who is an adult  
2 business use and who is not an adult business use and then  
3 put them in the right category. We sort of are chasing our  
4 tail on some of these things, but this is an attempt, once  
5 again, to try and figure that out because, once again, you  
6 know, land use only goes so far, and zoning regulations  
7 relative to land use only goes so far, and that's sort of  
8 the impasse we have right here.

9 CHAIR RENEHAN: Okay. Thank you.

10 MS. DESART: Is it true that the property is for sale  
11 for \$525,000?

12 MR. HOSS: What property?

13 MS. DESART: The Hot Shots.

14 MR. HOSS: I'm not familiar -- I'm aware that it's  
15 for sale. I don't know what the cost of it is, though. I  
16 can look into that for you.

17 MS. DESART: I'm just wondering if there is a move  
18 that if it's sold to a different type of business that it  
19 would be not the County's problem any longer. Say an auto  
20 body shop opened up on the property.

21 MR. HOSS: Well, that's interesting because it's  
22 always going to be a county problem or issue relative to  
23 zoning. The issue at hand is whether or not this is an  
24 adult business use. We may have it sold to someone who is

1 operating a use that's not an adult business use. I'm not  
2 suggesting that this one is.

3 MS. DESART: Right.

4 MR. HOSS: But it still may have operational aspects  
5 to it that are an issue that we have to deal with. So even  
6 if the property gets sold and there is another use that goes  
7 in there, that use will have to be a use that is permitted  
8 in the zoning district and the zoning district happens to be  
9 B1 which is a local commercial zoning district and so they  
10 will have to comply with the county zoning regulations and  
11 building codes relative to the use and operation on that  
12 property. So while we may get rid of an adult business use  
13 that may be going on there, we have another use that is  
14 problematic to have to deal with.

15 MS. DESART: But for the nature of this committee,  
16 another Hot Shots might open in a different part of DuPage  
17 County, so this is --

18 MR. HOSS: Absolutely, yeah.

19 MS. DESART: So it's still viable.

20 MR. HOSS: One of the things that we want to do with  
21 this process as well is even if we didn't have any adult  
22 business use operations out there or any uses that had  
23 propriety of being sold, we want to develop this  
24 comprehensive regulatory program so that we would be

1 prospective if one does open up someplace else we have the  
2 ability to jump on it right away with additional regulatory  
3 tools other than just zoning and liquor.

4 MS. DESART: Thank you.

5 MR. ZAY: Like you said that one goes -- I mean  
6 these things have been popping up all over the place. So  
7 you might be lucky enough to get one and then, you know,  
8 you've got some up in the Kenneyville area on Lake Street  
9 there could be more that you think, oh, good we got rid of  
10 them and then two months later they relocated to somewhere  
11 else and it's just going to be a continuing thing until we  
12 see that, you know, we need to be stricter on it and get rid  
13 of --

14 MR. ELLIOTT: And let's be honest, that's what  
15 happened with the current location because this business was  
16 on North Avenue near Swift Road and the property was sold  
17 for a development and they relocated now to the Gary Avenue,  
18 so that's exactly what happened.

19 CHAIR RENEHAN: I think Paul when we were speaking  
20 you kind of said it like mushrooms, you know, you get rid of  
21 one and then it just pops up more and more.

22 Do we have any other questions for Paul? We might  
23 as well go ahead. Any other questions for Paul?

24 No? All right. So Tony Hayman, you have a long

1 history with this issue. If you could educate us.

2 MR. HAYMAN: Yes. I'm Anthony Hayman. First of all,  
3 I would like to congratulate Paul. He plays an attorney so  
4 well and he makes my job much easier.

5 THE COURT REPORTER: I can't hear you very well.

6 MR. HAYMAN: My name is Anthony Hayman, H-a-y-m-a-n.  
7 I'm an assistant state's attorney for the County of DuPage.  
8 I represented the County Zoning Department starting in, stay  
9 seated, 1990. I was assigned to represent that department  
10 until about 1995. I then had other departments and then I  
11 came back to representing the department from 2001 till  
12 present.

13 Between 2001 and 2010 I was actively engaged in  
14 prosecuting what we refer to as spas. Spas are a type of --  
15 a particular type of adult business use. They tend to  
16 conceal their operations from the general public and pose as  
17 something else. I've had them -- I've been involved with  
18 businesses that have posed as photography studios,  
19 aromatherapy studios, relaxation centers, a dance school.  
20 Whatever your imagination can come up with, the business  
21 operators their imaginations are a little bit better, and  
22 they can come up with even more. But they engage in these  
23 fronts, these facades, and it makes them very difficult to  
24 catch.

1           But anyhow, I would say that in unincorporated  
2 DuPage County and incorporated DuPage County I was involved  
3 in probably maybe 40 to 50 of these businesses during that  
4 10-year period and it was like dandelion duty. We would  
5 close them down in one spot, and they would pop up in  
6 another location. We'd get an injunction against the  
7 corporation and the principals and low and behold they would  
8 just reincorporate and have, you know, a new principal on  
9 the letterhead and set up shop at a different location. But  
10 as we chased them, our zoning ordinance was very effective  
11 to begin with, it became less effective because they learned  
12 to correct their mistakes which I'll get into a little bit  
13 later.

14           But also so we're clear, when we talk about adult  
15 businesses, we're not talking about any business that has  
16 the word adult in front of it. I mean we're not going after  
17 -- we're not going to be looking at DeVry because they have  
18 adult education classes or an auto rental agency because  
19 they can only rent automobiles to people over the age of 24.  
20 We are going specifically after business operations and the  
21 use of property involving sexually-oriented activities or  
22 materials.

23           And sexually oriented has a definition and  
24 understanding in the legal system. Sexually oriented means

1 that it is distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on  
2 matters depicting or describing a person's sex organs and/or  
3 sexual acts and matters designed or intended to cause sexual  
4 arousal. And that's what we're going to seek to regulate or  
5 propose regulations for. And the regulations are going to  
6 also be nonzoning regulations that the Committee will  
7 consider for adoption. If in the course of this proceeding,  
8 though, the Committee believes that there are additional  
9 changes needed to the zoning ordinance, the process would be  
10 for the committee to include that as part of its  
11 recommendations. Those recommendations would be transmitted  
12 to the Zoning Board of Appeals and then the Zoning Board of  
13 Appeals would take up zoning changes. There's a statutory  
14 process for effecting zoning changes that requires the  
15 involvement of the ZBA.

16           Also, as Paul alluded to and as we discussed,  
17 there are open adult business uses. The only openly  
18 operating adult business use in DuPage County is an adult  
19 book store, but we've also had a gentlemen's club and in  
20 years' past we've had other bookstores that are now since  
21 closed and, again, we had these concealed business  
22 operations. The real objective of our regulatory scheme is  
23 to come up with something a little bit more comprehensive  
24 than our zoning regulations to address those sorts of

1 businesses.

2           If you go through the materials that we're going  
3 to provide, you can see that adult business use is just one  
4 of the many names that is out there. Adult business uses,  
5 in fact, is a DuPage County name that's found in the zoning  
6 ordinance. There is also the materials that reference adult  
7 entertainment facilities. Adult entertainment facility is  
8 an Illinois state statutory term. But the majority of the  
9 organizations, jurisdictions you will see them referred to  
10 as sexually-oriented businesses or appropriately SOBs. And  
11 I even found one jurisdiction that kind of took all the  
12 possible names, threw them into a hat, pulled out  
13 adult-oriented entertainment businesses and facilities  
14 ordinance, so they covered a little bit of everything.

15           Currently in DuPage County adult businesses  
16 are all going to be subject to the County's generally  
17 applicable regulations; the stormwater ordinance, the  
18 building code, the zoning ordinance. They are going  
19 to have to, you know, for example, if they want to set  
20 up shop, they are going to have to avoid being in a  
21 wetland, impacting a wetland. They are going to have  
22 to have exit signs that are illuminated. They are  
23 going to have to have outlets on the wall every so  
24 many feet. They are going to have to have a certain



1 amount of parking spots to accommodate their customers  
2 and employees based on the size of the business.

3           As for specific county ordinances that target  
4 he sexually-oriented businesses, we only have the  
5 DuPage County Zoning Ordinance which at Article 4,  
6 Section 416 restricts adult businesses as defined by  
7 the zoning ordinance to the industrial zoned districts  
8 and requires that they be isolated from certain  
9 enumerated uses; schools, day care facilities, parks,  
10 forest preserves.

11           We also have a section of the law enforcement  
12 code, Chapter 20, Article 15. It is a very short  
13 adult entertainment facility ordinance. The only  
14 operable regulation in there today is a prohibition on  
15 alcohol in adult business uses or in adult  
16 entertainment facilities.

17           Previously, as part of our efforts to combat  
18 the spa-type business, the County adopted a  
19 therapeutic massage establishment licensing ordinance.  
20 That ordinance was in effect for a period of time. I  
21 don't recall the exact years. About mid 1990s to  
22 about mid 2000s. That's because a number of the spas  
23 that were concealing their identity were presenting  
24 themselves as being massage parlors. So the

1 therapeutic massage establishment licensing ordinance  
2 established standards for massage parlors. What has  
3 happened is all of these spa-type businesses have  
4 dropped massage from being part of their advertised  
5 services so they don't fall under the scope of that  
6 ordinance anymore. That's why they began switching to  
7 aromatherapy, relaxation spas, dance studios. Again,  
8 that's part of the evolution that they go through.

9           The County first adopted zoning regulations  
10 in 1986. And that was in part in response to the  
11 lawsuit involving County of DuPage v. Zebulon Books  
12 which was an unsuccessful effort to have the then  
13 existing zoning regulations imposed on Zebulon Books  
14 and force them to relocate. The Court, however,  
15 essentially concluded that they were a legally  
16 nonconforming use and allowed them to remain at that  
17 location.

18           As a result, the County then undertook the  
19 first adoption of the comprehensive zoning regulations  
20 to target adult business uses in 1986. In 1997  
21 amendments were made to it to allow for therapeutic  
22 massage uses which was consistent with the County's  
23 therapeutic massage licensing ordinance. In 1998  
24 Paul's predecessor was responsible for some

1 comprehensive text amendments that included changes in  
2 the locational restrictions to adult business uses.

3           The problem is that proceeding, as revealed  
4 in the Palmetto court, was predicated on some  
5 erroneous GIS information, and as a result, the County  
6 zoning ordinance was held to be unconstitutional  
7 because it failed one of the constitutional thresholds  
8 for zoning regulations. And that is we failed under  
9 the new enactments to provide reasonable avenues of --  
10 alternative avenues of communication to adult business  
11 uses; in other words, we went from having a number of  
12 sites available to having no sites available. We  
13 blocked them out of DuPage County. That under the  
14 existing federal case law, was not allowed. So the  
15 ordinance was declared unconstitutional and the County  
16 then engaged in the efforts. I was brought back to  
17 represent zoning and we engaged, along with Paul and  
18 I, we did some -- we did the comprehensive text  
19 amendments in 2002 which ultimately survived the  
20 Court's scrutiny and passed constitutional muster.

21           In that process we brought in a number of  
22 case laws, court decisions, studies from other  
23 jurisdictions. We brought in the record of the  
24 original 1986 text amendment. We had testimony from

1 the zoning planner, DuPage County sheriff's office,  
2 the Forest Preserve District police, zoning staff, the  
3 State's attorney's office. We entered in site data  
4 from the Stormwater Department, our GIS Department,  
5 sheriff's reports. We had a real estate appraiser  
6 testify. We had affidavits from school districts. We  
7 had a Health Department official come in and testify  
8 about communicable diseases and provide statistics.  
9 It was a rather thorough process, but it was effective  
10 and, as Paul pointed out, chasing out some 30 to 40  
11 businesses in unincorporated DuPage County that would  
12 pop up from time to time. But, again, they have  
13 learned from the zoning, and they have evolved and  
14 they are doing a better job of concealing their  
15 activities than they had in the past.

16           One of the things they do different is they  
17 have ceased their advertising to be connected to a  
18 site. One of Paul's duties back in the old days was  
19 to go around to the liquor stores and pick up the  
20 Chicago After Dark magazines and scan through the  
21 sports section of the Sun Times and clip out all the  
22 advertisements where the advertisements were --

23           MR. HOSS: Was I suppose to stop doing that?

24           MR. HAYMAN: Where the advertisements actually

1 made what we had admitted into court as judicial  
2 admissions, public admissions, as to their activities.

3           They also had very explicit websites. I  
4 remember tendering it to a judge the printouts of  
5 their websites in one case while the attorney was  
6 arguing that they were not an adult business use that  
7 it was just, you know, provocative advertisement and  
8 she effectively cut him off and said, no, and tossed  
9 him the exhibits, said, "you saw the exhibits", and  
10 then foreclosed any further discussion on it. It was  
11 obvious that from the text and from the photographs  
12 they were an adult business use. That's what they  
13 were there for. They were to sell the nudity of their  
14 female employees.

15           And that brings us around to the first  
16 amendment because I'm sure some of you are thinking,  
17 geez, it would be so much easier if we could just  
18 close them down and not let them go anywhere in DuPage  
19 County. The problem with that is the first amendment  
20 has been interpreted time and time again is protecting  
21 this sort of speech. Whether you like it or not it's  
22 being protected.

23           In the Young v. American Mini-Theaters case  
24 the Court said that this erotic material, in that case

1 it was adult movies, enjoys -- is constitutionally  
2 protected and the city's interest in that case,  
3 Detroit, their interest in preserving the quality of  
4 their neighborhoods had to be balanced against the  
5 ability of the movie theater operators to be able to  
6 disseminate it to a willing public who wanted to  
7 receive it as -- who wanted that form of  
8 entertainment.

9           In Erie v. -- Paps v. Erie or City of Erie  
10 v. Paps I believe it was Justice Sandra Day O'Connor  
11 commented that nude dancing, although it's on the  
12 outer fringe of first amendment protection, it's still  
13 protected by the first amendment.

14           And there is also a case out of New Jersey,  
15 Schad v. Borough of Mount Ephraim. In that case the  
16 Court concluded that a fairly substantial borough that  
17 was a suburb of New York City in New Jersey was too  
18 large to exclude those businesses from its boundaries  
19 because the city had argued that as an alternative  
20 avenue of communication, well, they can drive into New  
21 York City and get anything they want in terms of  
22 entertainment. The Court concluded that that was not  
23 an adequate remedy. You had to -- if you're a big  
24 enough community within your own boundaries, you had

1 to make it available. You didn't have to operate the  
2 stores, but at least you had to make the sites  
3 available to any business that wanted to locate there  
4 and disseminate it locally.

5           So ultimately when we talk about these  
6 regulations that are going to be targeted towards a  
7 specific type of adult business, we are going to be  
8 brushing up against the first amendment. And when you  
9 brush up against the first amendment, you have to be  
10 careful of -- there is a distinction made, I should  
11 say, between content-based regulations and regulations  
12 that are content neutral which address the adverse  
13 effects of the business and not the speech that they  
14 are actually disseminating.

15           With content-based regulations they are  
16 subject to the highest level of constitutional review.  
17 And that's strict scrutiny. There has to be a  
18 compelling state interest. The regulation has to be  
19 narrowly tailored and precisely drawn and once  
20 prepared, once you have it in place, it has to advance  
21 a substantial governmental interest.

22           MS. DESART: Could you read those three again  
23 really slowly, please.

24           MR. HAYMAN: Okay. For strict --

1 MS. DESART: Content-based regulation.

2 MR. HAYMAN: They have to have a compelling  
3 state interest, they have to be narrowly tailored and  
4 precisely drawn, and they have to advance a  
5 substantial governmental interest.

6 MS. DESART: Thank you.

7 MR. HAYMAN: When you are attacking the  
8 secondary effects, the regulations are considered a  
9 time, place, and manner restriction. You've all  
10 probably heard the axiom that it's -- free speech  
11 doesn't protect you from shouting fire in a crowded  
12 movie house but, you know, if you're out in the forest  
13 by yourself, you can shout fire all you want. That's  
14 sort of the principle behind it. It just restricts  
15 the time, place, and manner in which you exercise your  
16 speech.

17 Zoning is a classic example of a time, place,  
18 and manner restriction. We allow the businesses to  
19 disseminate their speech through pornographic material  
20 or through nude dance, but we require that they do it  
21 in an industrial district and we require that they  
22 stay 1,000 feet away from residences or 1,000 feet  
23 away from schools.

24 Licensing and comprehensive business regulations



1 are the same way. You are regulating the manner and method  
2 in which they disseminate it without actually saying you  
3 can't disseminate something based upon the content of the  
4 speech.

5 Now, content-neutral regulations are reviewed  
6 under a more relaxed intermediate scrutiny. You simply have  
7 to show --

8 I'm just checking do we keep the quorum?

9 CHAIR RENEHAN: Yes.

10 MR. HAYMAN: Okay. That the regulation is within the  
11 power of government to act that it furthers an important  
12 governmental interest. That government interest is  
13 unrelated to the suppression of protected speech and in this  
14 regard courts will review and scrutinize the legislative  
15 record to ensure that you aren't improperly motivated when  
16 passing the ordinance or regulation. And any incidental  
17 restrictions must be no greater than necessary to further  
18 the government's interest.

19 So, again, because of the intermediate scrutiny  
20 and what we need to go through to defend these sorts of  
21 regulations in the event of a challenge, and that's why we  
22 have a court reporter here which is different than probably  
23 any other committee meeting you've attended, you can get a  
24 mountain of documentary evidence. We apologize for that,

1 but it's necessary. We'd rather give you too much than too  
2 little.

3           You're going to hear the testimony of so many  
4 witnesses and at the end of the process you're going to end  
5 up needing to make very detailed and very lengthy  
6 recommendations and findings. And this is the exact same  
7 process that we followed in -- the County followed in 1986  
8 and again in 2002 and again, I don't recall the year, but  
9 when the adult entertainment facility regulations were  
10 adopted. That committee, I recall, was chaired by Mr. Zay.

11           Again, we have zoning today in place. Zoning,  
12 though, as pointed out by Paul, has some limitations. It  
13 only imposes locational restrictions. It doesn't get into  
14 the operational aspects of these businesses. Accordingly,  
15 if they hire an under age dancer or a victim of human  
16 trafficking, all zoning does is make that person work in an  
17 industrial district. It doesn't do anything to break the  
18 cycle.

19           Adult business uses that conceal their activities  
20 are very difficult to detect and enforce. For example, with  
21 zoning you have to show multiple instances of the property  
22 being used as an adult business activity before the courts  
23 will take action against it. That requires multiple  
24 undercover investigations which are costly and, you know,

1 they don't always obtain the information and the evidence  
2 that they need and they have to go back several times. It  
3 sounds like it's a fun job. All the officers hate it. But  
4 they are very difficult to prove. With a licensing scheme  
5 or comprehensive business regulations, this is something  
6 that zoning staff or an enforcement staff can perform, and  
7 they can identify the violations very easily with a single  
8 inspection. There is no need to go undercover and go  
9 through the routine of -- and go through their routine which  
10 you will hear about in testimony.

11           Also, zoning regulations are not retroactive. If  
12 you are already in place, you're grandfathered in under  
13 zoning. And when you do find a zoning violation, the  
14 violations are sometimes subject to rather limited remedies.  
15 The fine for a zoning regulation is \$500 per week. These  
16 are businesses that we have heard reports of individual  
17 employees making \$1,000 in a shift. Multiply that by two or  
18 three plus the share that's taken by the business and you  
19 can begin to understand that, you know, these businesses are  
20 making thousands and thousands of dollars per week. They  
21 can easily afford \$500 a week fine. The enabling statute  
22 for local regulations, adult business regulations, allows  
23 for \$1,000 a day for violations of any locally adopted  
24 ordinance. It's not perfect, but it helps bring the scales

1 closer together.

2           Also, the expert consensus in all of these reports  
3 are going to say that zoning alone is never enough. You  
4 always have to supplement it with some sort of comprehensive  
5 business regulation program. And not only that you also  
6 have to look at them frequently and constantly adjust for  
7 all the changes that adult business uses industry is going  
8 to engage in to circumvent your ordinance because they will  
9 communicate amongst each other so when you impose one  
10 regulation and are successful at implementing that  
11 regulation as soon as they figure a way around it, they all  
12 will begin adopting that way around it. It's part of their  
13 business model.

14           So ultimately hopefully the Committee's  
15 recommendation will again be for a comprehensive business  
16 regulation program. We're authorized by state law to have  
17 such a regulation. It's 55 ILCS 5/5-1097.7. There are  
18 advantages to it. It attacks the secondary effects from the  
19 operational characteristics. It makes detection and  
20 enforcement simplified. You can also, with a licensing  
21 violation or string of violations, you can shut the business  
22 down easier than you can with a zoning violation. You can  
23 simply rescind the license and that closes them down. As  
24 penalties, you can suspend their license for a period of

1 time and shut them down for a week or a month. If they are  
2 shut down for a week or a month, more than likely most of  
3 their employees are going to leave and go find employment  
4 someplace else. They are not going to stick around and come  
5 back after a month. They will find someplace else to work.

6 And it's not retroactive. You can impose this on  
7 currently operating businesses in DuPage County with limited  
8 requirements for a phase-in period, but these can be put  
9 into effect and every adult business in DuPage County will  
10 be subject to them and will then have to start to comply  
11 within a reasonable period of time.

12 And that's it. If there is any questions, I'd be  
13 happy to answer them.

14 MS. DESART: Could there possibly be any negative  
15 ramifications for legitimate adult businesses like Massage  
16 Envy and, you know, legitimate massage parlors? Could there  
17 possibly be any negative ramifications for those?

18 MR. HAYMAN: Legitimate massage parlors are covered  
19 under State law now. One of the reasons why we don't  
20 enforce the County's therapeutic massage licensing ordinance  
21 is because the State adopted its own set of State  
22 regulations licensing those sorts of businesses. When the  
23 State did it, we got a nice letter from the State saying  
24 stop regulating them. It's our responsibility. You're out

1 of the business. So it's gone to the wayside, and we  
2 haven't bothered to enforce it.

3 MS. DESART: Thank you.

4 MR. HAYMAN: Incidentally, the State regulations have  
5 been used against a business that has now since closed that  
6 was still giving out massages, but they weren't advertising  
7 it. DuPage County sheriff's police were able to charge that  
8 business with the employees with providing massages without  
9 a license and that eventually shut them down.

10 MS. OZOG: Without a state license.

11 MR. HAYMAN: Without a state license.

12 CHAIR RENEHAN: Well, if we have no more questions,  
13 I'd just like to thank Paul for kind of giving us the lay of  
14 the land as to -- Oh, Liz?

15 MS. CHAPLIN: I didn't have any more questions but  
16 just comment under new business or old business are you  
17 going to do that?

18 CHAIR RENEHAN: Yeah. I'm going to get there in a  
19 minute.

20 MS. CHAPLIN: Okay.

21 CHAIR RENEHAN: I just want to thank Paul for giving  
22 us the ground ork, the lay of the land and Tony for kind of  
23 giving us a framework that we need to work within in order  
24 to make this work properly.

1 I also would like to note we have a lot of other  
2 County Board members here today that have come to learn and  
3 be part of this. Sheila Rutledge, Liz Chaplin, Mary Ozog,  
4 Grant Eckhoff is here. We also have Tom Cuculich who is  
5 here. Paul Racich, Nick Kottmeyer. Anybody else?

6 We have a lot of interest and a lot of people who  
7 want to make changes in the adult business industry in  
8 DuPage County, so we are working on this.

9 Is it time for old business now?

10 MS. DESART: Can I just say in that spirit with so  
11 many new faces and since we do have a stenographer, could  
12 you please say your name if you don't have a name tag  
13 because she wants to get names down.

14 CHAIR RENEHAN: Okay. Just go around the room is  
15 that okay?

16 THE COURT REPORTER: Sure.

17 MS. DESART: Before you speak say, Hi, I'm Liz  
18 Chaplin, County Board Member, here is my question.

19 MR. HAYMAN: Business cards, too.

20 MS. CHAPLIN: I don't have those.

21 CHAIR RENEHAN: Go ahead, Liz, did you want to say  
22 something?

23 MS. CHAPLIN: I did. So thank you for holding this  
24 meeting. In 2016 I had brought in the West Chicagoland

1 Anti-Trafficking Coalition to our Health and Human Service  
2 Committee. I would recommend we bring them in. They have a  
3 wealth of knowledge on the subject especially the  
4 anti-trafficking.

5 I guess that's why I'm here because we've known  
6 for a long time that this is a problem even in DuPage  
7 County, and I was kind of disappointed in 2016 that it  
8 really didn't go anywhere so I'm glad that we're addressing  
9 it now because the thing that's most concerning to me about  
10 the adult business is you do what you want to do, but if you  
11 are harming people like through human trafficking and things  
12 like that, that is what I find more troubling than any  
13 aspect of the adult business itself is the taking advantage  
14 of vulnerable people, you know, that, you know, that just --  
15 it's really disgusting, sorry to use that word.

16 So I'm glad we're bringing this up and I think  
17 that this West Chicagoland Anti-Trafficking Coalition could  
18 really help us, too, with going forward with our goals and  
19 they just have a wealth of knowledge and, you know, they  
20 even have pictures of facilities. If you're in a facility  
21 and you snap a picture and you think somebody is being  
22 trafficked, they can look up that location through the  
23 picture that you take if you send it to them and a lot of  
24 times they send in people to go get the people that are



1 being human trafficked, so they are just a great group.

2 Like I said, my concern more so about these adult  
3 businesses is the ramifications that it has with, you know,  
4 the taking advantage of people and just the inappropriate  
5 things that go along with that, so I'm glad we're addressing  
6 it.

7 CHAIR RENEHAN: Thank you. I want to get that  
8 information. West Suburban Anti-Trafficking --

9 LIZ CHAPLAN: West Chicagoland Anti-Trafficking  
10 Coalition.

11 CHAIR RENEHAN: Okay. Great. Thank you. Does  
12 anybody else have any comments?

13 Also, can we mention Greg Hart, County Board  
14 member, was also here.

15 There is no old business. Any new business at  
16 all?

17 At that point I guess we can stand adjourned.  
18 February 12th is our next meeting.

19 MS. DESART: At 12:30.

20 CHAIR RENEHAN: At 12:30 in this room. Thank you.

21 (Which were all the  
22 proceedings had at the  
23 above-entitled meeting.)

24

1 I, MEGAN L. ROMAK, CSR, do hereby  
2 certify that at the request of DuPage County Ad-Hoc  
3 Adult Business Committee, subject to the usual terms  
4 and conditions of County Court Reporters, Inc.,  
5 reported in shorthand the proceedings had and  
6 testimony taken at the public hearing of the  
7 above-entitled cause, and that the foregoing  
8 transcript is a true, correct and complete report of  
9 the entire testimony so taken at the time and place  
10 hereinabove set forth.

11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24

---

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTER

<p style="text-align: center;"><b>A</b></p> <p><b>ability</b> 12:6,6,23 13:5 22:22 28:2 38:5</p> <p><b>able</b> 7:18,19 10:19 12:4 14:10 19:1,8 22:23 25:8,14 38:5 46:7</p> <p><b>above-entitled</b> 49:23 50:7</p> <p><b>Absolutely</b> 8:19 27:18</p> <p><b>accept</b> 4:3</p> <p><b>acceptance</b> 4:1</p> <p><b>accepted</b> 23:24</p> <p><b>accommodate</b> 4:19 33:1</p> <p><b>act</b> 41:11</p> <p><b>action</b> 19:14 25:9 42:23</p> <p><b>actively</b> 29:13</p> <p><b>activities</b> 7:4 18:9 21:24 30:21 36:15 37:2 42:19</p> <p><b>activity</b> 16:12 23:9 42:22</p> <p><b>acts</b> 31:3</p> <p><b>actual</b> 22:2 25:15</p> <p><b>Ad-Hoc</b> 1:1,4,9 3:2 9:16 23:23 50:2</p> <p><b>addition</b> 4:17</p> <p><b>additional</b> 28:2 31:8</p> <p><b>Additionally</b> 5:5</p> <p><b>address</b> 7:10 13:11 20:24 22:23 31:24 39:12</p> <p><b>addressing</b> 21:1 48:8 49:5</p>	<p><b>adequate</b> 38:23</p> <p><b>adjourned</b> 49:17</p> <p><b>adjudication</b> 11:10 25:10</p> <p><b>adjust</b> 44:6</p> <p><b>administered</b> 8:22</p> <p><b>administration</b> 1:10 2:11 10:24 11:10</p> <p><b>Administrative</b> 5:20 8:13</p> <p><b>admissions</b> 37:2 37:2</p> <p><b>admitted</b> 37:1</p> <p><b>adopted</b> 33:18 34:9 42:10 43:23 45:21</p> <p><b>adopting</b> 44:12</p> <p><b>adoption</b> 31:7 34:19</p> <p><b>adult</b> 1:1,4,9 3:2 4:7,12,24 5:18 5:23 7:18,22 9:16,21,23 10:10,20 11:6 11:17 12:20,23 13:3,9,14,17 13:19,23 14:21 14:22,24 15:9 15:10 16:1,9 16:16,19,21,24 17:16,20 18:1 18:3,7,10,12 19:1,3,4,5,14 19:16,17,20,22 19:24,24 20:3 20:9,15,18,18 20:21,22,23 21:24 22:2,9 22:10,11,16 23:8,13,15,18 23:22 24:6 25:2,7,13,15</p>	<p>25:22 26:1,2 26:24 27:1,12 27:21 29:15 30:14,16,18 31:17,18,18 32:3,4,6,7,15 33:6,13,15,15 34:20 35:2,10 37:6,12 38:1 39:7 42:9,19 42:22 43:22 44:7 45:9,15 47:7 48:10,13 49:2 50:3</p> <p><b>adult-oriented</b> 32:13</p> <p><b>advance</b> 39:20 40:4</p> <p><b>advantage</b> 48:13 49:4</p> <p><b>advantages</b> 44:18</p> <p><b>adverse</b> 39:12</p> <p><b>advertised</b> 34:4</p> <p><b>advertisement</b> 37:7</p> <p><b>advertisements</b> 36:22,22,24</p> <p><b>advertising</b> 36:17 46:6</p> <p><b>advocates</b> 22:7</p> <p><b>affidavits</b> 36:6</p> <p><b>afford</b> 43:21</p> <p><b>afternoon</b> 3:1</p> <p><b>age</b> 23:10,11 30:19 42:15</p> <p><b>agency</b> 30:18</p> <p><b>ago</b> 23:5,7 24:23</p> <p><b>ahead</b> 6:5 16:5 28:23 47:21</p> <p><b>alcohol</b> 24:10 33:15</p> <p><b>allow</b> 14:3 34:21 40:18</p>	<p><b>allowed</b> 19:19 34:16 35:14</p> <p><b>allows</b> 13:12 24:12 43:22</p> <p><b>alluded</b> 31:16</p> <p><b>alternative</b> 35:10 38:19</p> <p><b>ameliorated</b> 18:9</p> <p><b>amend</b> 17:21</p> <p><b>amended</b> 23:6,7</p> <p><b>amendment</b> 12:24 13:3,8 19:1 35:24 37:16,19 38:12 38:13 39:8,9</p> <p><b>amendments</b> 11:4,6 34:21 35:1,19</p> <p><b>American</b> 37:23</p> <p><b>amount</b> 33:1</p> <p><b>and/or</b> 31:2</p> <p><b>answer</b> 45:13</p> <p><b>Anthony</b> 2:13 29:2,6</p> <p><b>anti-trafficking</b> 48:1,4,17 49:8 49:9</p> <p><b>anticipates</b> 4:21</p> <p><b>anybody</b> 8:7 24:2 47:5 49:12</p> <p><b>anymore</b> 18:15 34:6</p> <p><b>apologize</b> 41:24</p> <p><b>Appeal</b> 16:23</p> <p><b>appeals</b> 16:24 18:2 31:12,13</p> <p><b>applicable</b> 32:17</p> <p><b>appraiser</b> 36:5</p> <p><b>appreciate</b> 3:21 6:13</p> <p><b>appropriately</b> 32:10</p>	<p><b>approximately</b> 11:2</p> <p><b>area</b> 4:1 12:1,3 15:14,19,20,21 16:22 28:8</p> <p><b>areas</b> 7:23 8:2</p> <p><b>argued</b> 38:19</p> <p><b>arguing</b> 37:6</p> <p><b>aromatherapy</b> 29:19 34:7</p> <p><b>arousal</b> 31:4</p> <p><b>Article</b> 33:5,12</p> <p><b>asks</b> 9:20</p> <p><b>aspect</b> 48:13</p> <p><b>aspects</b> 14:22 16:19 20:15 23:17 27:4 42:14</p> <p><b>assault</b> 18:18 22:4</p> <p><b>assaults</b> 21:3</p> <p><b>assembly</b> 19:7</p> <p><b>assigned</b> 29:9</p> <p><b>assistant</b> 2:13 5:16 29:7</p> <p><b>assume</b> 7:8</p> <p><b>attacking</b> 23:17 40:7</p> <p><b>attacks</b> 44:18</p> <p><b>attempt</b> 12:14 25:24 26:4</p> <p><b>attended</b> 6:13 41:23</p> <p><b>attorney</b> 2:13 5:16 29:3,7 37:5</p> <p><b>attorney's</b> 10:17 19:13 36:3</p> <p><b>Aurora</b> 15:17</p> <p><b>authorized</b> 44:16</p> <p><b>auto</b> 26:19 30:18</p> <p><b>automatically</b> 23:13</p>
--	---	--	---	---

<b>automobiles</b> 30:19	30:12 31:23 32:14	<b>business</b> 1:1,4,9 3:3 4:8 5:18 6:21,23 7:7,19 9:16,21,23 10:10,20 11:6 11:17 12:20,23 13:3,9,14,19 13:23 14:8,8 14:21,22,24 15:9,11 16:1,9 16:13,16,19,22 17:1,16,20 18:1,4,7,10,12 19:2,3,4,14,16 19:18,20,22,24 20:1,3,9,15,18 20:18,21,22,23 21:24 22:3,9 22:10,11,16 23:8,10,13,15 23:18,23 24:5 24:6,7 25:2,7 25:13,15,22 26:2,2,18,24 27:1,12,22 28:15 29:15,20 30:15,20 31:17 31:18,21 32:3 32:4 33:2,15 33:18 34:20 35:2,10 37:6 37:12 39:3,7 39:13 40:24 42:19,22 43:5 43:18,22 44:5 44:7,13,15,21 45:9 46:1,5,8 46:16,16 47:7 47:9,19 48:10 48:13 49:15,15 50:3	29:18 30:3,15 32:1,10,13,15 33:4,6 34:3 36:11 38:18 40:18 42:14 43:16,19 45:7 45:15,22 49:3	49:11,20 <b>chaired</b> 42:10 <b>Chairman</b> 11:15 23:20 <b>challenge</b> 41:21 <b>change</b> 17:4 <b>changed</b> 7:11 <b>changes</b> 31:9,13 31:14 35:1 44:7 47:7 <b>CHAPLAN</b> 49:9 <b>Chaplin</b> 46:15 46:20 47:3,18 47:20,23 <b>Chapter</b> 33:12 <b>characteristics</b> 44:19 <b>characterized</b> 31:1 <b>charge</b> 46:7 <b>chased</b> 30:10 <b>chasing</b> 26:3 36:10 <b>checking</b> 41:8 <b>Chicago</b> 36:20 <b>Chicagoland</b> 47:24 48:17 49:9 <b>children</b> 13:22 19:6 <b>Church</b> 6:9 <b>circuit</b> 11:13 <b>circumvent</b> 44:8 <b>citizens</b> 18:13 <b>city</b> 38:9,17,19 38:21 <b>city's</b> 38:2 <b>classes</b> 19:5 30:18 <b>classic</b> 40:17 <b>clear</b> 4:13 7:4 30:14 <b>Clerk</b> 3:5,6,8,10 3:12,14,16
<hr/> <b>B</b> <hr/> <b>B1</b> 27:9 <b>back</b> 10:6 11:6 15:7 16:20 29:11 35:16 36:18 43:2 45:5 <b>background</b> 11:16 <b>backside</b> 22:9 <b>balance</b> 14:2,3 <b>balanced</b> 38:4 <b>based</b> 33:2 41:3 <b>basically</b> 9:20 <b>basis</b> 9:22 10:16 <b>batteries</b> 22:4 <b>battery</b> 18:17 <b>began</b> 34:6 <b>behold</b> 30:7 <b>believe</b> 6:14,16 38:10 <b>believes</b> 31:8 <b>best</b> 7:10 <b>better</b> 23:18 29:21 36:14 <b>beyond</b> 15:2 16:13 23:8 <b>Bible</b> 6:9 <b>big</b> 38:23 <b>bit</b> 7:5 18:11 21:1 29:21	<b>blocked</b> 35:13 <b>Board</b> 4:6,17 5:2 5:9 7:9,21 16:23 18:2,3 23:12 24:22 31:12,12 47:2 47:18 49:13 <b>body</b> 22:21 26:20 <b>book</b> 19:19 31:19 <b>Books</b> 34:11,13 <b>bookstores</b> 17:1 31:20 <b>borough</b> 38:15 38:16 <b>bothered</b> 46:2 <b>boundaries</b> 38:18,24 <b>Bowl</b> 6:24 <b>Brady</b> 6:2,3,6,7 8:5 <b>break</b> 42:17 <b>briefly</b> 9:3,15 <b>bring</b> 9:19 10:7 10:9 21:7 43:24 48:2 <b>bringing</b> 10:18 21:18,21 22:1 22:6,17 48:16 <b>brings</b> 37:15 <b>brought</b> 17:24 35:16,21,23 47:24 <b>brush</b> 39:9 <b>brushing</b> 39:8 <b>building</b> 1:10 10:7,11 11:1 20:12 23:3 27:11 32:18 <b>bulk</b> 14:17 <b>burgleries</b> 21:4	<b>business</b> 1:1,4,9 3:3 4:8 5:18 6:21,23 7:7,19 9:16,21,23 10:10,20 11:6 11:17 12:20,23 13:3,9,14,19 13:23 14:8,8 14:21,22,24 15:9,11 16:1,9 16:13,16,19,22 17:1,16,20 18:1,4,7,10,12 19:2,3,4,14,16 19:18,20,22,24 20:1,3,9,15,18 20:18,21,22,23 21:24 22:3,9 22:10,11,16 23:8,10,13,15 23:18,23 24:5 24:6,7 25:2,7 25:13,15,22 26:2,2,18,24 27:1,12,22 28:15 29:15,20 30:15,20 31:17 31:18,21 32:3 32:4 33:2,15 33:18 34:20 35:2,10 37:6 37:12 39:3,7 39:13 40:24 42:19,22 43:5 43:18,22 44:5 44:7,13,15,21 45:9 46:1,5,8 46:16,16 47:7 47:9,19 48:10 48:13 49:15,15 50:3 <b>businesses</b> 4:12 4:24 5:23 7:12 7:23 13:18	<hr/> <b>C</b> <hr/> <b>California</b> 21:14 <b>call</b> 3:3 11:22 13:16 <b>called</b> 9:16 17:6 <b>cards</b> 47:19 <b>care</b> 33:9 <b>careful</b> 39:10 <b>cares</b> 13:24 19:7 <b>CARTHY</b> 2:10 <b>case</b> 5:13 16:9 17:14 18:22 35:14,22 37:5 37:23,24 38:2 38:14,15 <b>cases</b> 11:14 16:24 <b>catch</b> 29:24 <b>category</b> 26:3 <b>cause</b> 25:19 31:3 50:7 <b>ceased</b> 36:17 <b>centers</b> 29:19 <b>certain</b> 32:24 33:8 <b>CERTIFIED</b> 50:14 <b>certify</b> 50:2 <b>Chair</b> 2:2 3:1,2 3:16,17 6:4 8:5 8:20,23,24 23:24 24:24 25:17 26:9 28:19 41:9 46:12,18,21 47:14,21 49:7	

<b>clip</b> 36:21	5:12 6:12 8:24	<b>concluded</b> 34:15	<b>conventional</b>	42:7 45:7,9
<b>close</b> 20:20 30:5	9:16 23:23	38:16,22	23:3,14	46:7 47:2,8,18
37:18	27:15 31:6,8	<b>concludes</b> 5:24	<b>Cook</b> 15:7,8	48:7 49:13
<b>closed</b> 25:9,10	31:10 41:23	<b>conditions</b> 50:4	<b>Coordinator</b>	50:2,4
31:21 46:5	42:10 48:2	<b>conduct</b> 4:15	2:11 5:20 8:13	<b>County's</b> 17:15
<b>closer</b> 7:14 44:1	50:3	<b>conducted</b> 21:8	10:24	26:19 32:16
<b>closes</b> 44:23	<b>Committee's</b>	<b>confronted</b> 15:6	<b>corner</b> 19:17	34:22 45:20
<b>closest</b> 15:24	44:14	17:5	<b>corporate</b> 17:8	<b>couple</b> 21:8
<b>club</b> 17:9 31:19	<b>communicable</b>	<b>congratulate</b>	<b>corporation</b>	24:22
<b>clubs</b> 17:1	21:23 36:8	29:3	30:7	<b>course</b> 31:7
<b>Coalition</b> 48:1	<b>communicate</b>	<b>connected</b> 36:17	<b>correct</b> 30:12	<b>court</b> 4:3 11:11
48:17 49:10	44:9	<b>CONOR</b> 2:10	50:8	11:11,13,14
<b>code</b> 17:13 18:1	<b>communication</b>	<b>consensus</b> 44:2	<b>cost</b> 26:15	16:24 17:15,17
32:18 33:12	35:10 38:20	<b>consider</b> 23:15	<b>costly</b> 42:24	19:18 20:4
<b>codes</b> 10:11 20:2	<b>communities</b>	31:7	<b>counter</b> 7:4	25:8,9 29:5
27:11	21:19	<b>considerations</b>	<b>counter-intuit...</b>	34:14 35:4,22
<b>cognizant</b> 13:2	<b>community</b> 5:5	10:5	21:1	37:1,24 38:16
<b>cold</b> 3:20	7:5 38:24	<b>considered</b>	<b>counteracting</b>	38:22 41:22
<b>collective</b> 22:21	<b>compelling</b>	23:13 40:8	4:11	47:16 50:4
<b>column</b> 9:24	12:11,13,22	<b>consistent</b> 34:22	<b>country</b> 21:9	<b>Court's</b> 35:20
10:3	39:18 40:2	<b>constant</b> 12:17	<b>county</b> 1:1,9,10	<b>courts</b> 13:10
<b>combat</b> 5:23	<b>complaints</b> 4:6	<b>constantly</b> 44:6	1:10 4:6,8,17	14:3 19:9
33:17	<b>complete</b> 50:8	<b>constitution</b>	4:24 5:2,9,18	41:14 42:22
<b>combined</b> 20:14	<b>completely</b>	19:11	5:20,23 7:9,21	<b>covered</b> 32:14
<b>come</b> 8:8 12:20	22:22	<b>constitutional</b>	8:12 9:10,10	45:18
13:7 15:9 16:1	<b>comply</b> 27:10	12:24 35:7,20	11:1,2,12,18	<b>create</b> 14:11
16:15 17:13	45:10	39:16	11:22 12:7,12	19:2,4
25:20 29:20,22	<b>comprehensive</b>	<b>constitutionally</b>	14:23 15:6,8,8	<b>created</b> 15:21
31:23 36:7	4:11 10:9	4:14 38:1	15:11,15,16,18	<b>crime</b> 13:20
45:4 47:2	20:11 22:24	<b>constructive</b>	15:23 16:1,6	<b>crossroads</b> 20:7
<b>comes</b> 12:16	23:19 27:24	7:22	17:10,14,17,21	<b>crowded</b> 40:11
<b>coming</b> 3:20 8:6	31:23 34:19	<b>content</b> 39:12	18:3,6 19:15	<b>CSR</b> 1:11 50:1
21:3 22:11	35:1,18 40:24	41:3	19:17,20 20:5	<b>Cuculich</b> 47:4
<b>comment</b> 4:1 5:3	43:5 44:4,15	<b>content-based</b>	21:10,12,12,13	<b>current</b> 5:17,21
5:3 6:1 8:7	<b>conceal</b> 29:16	39:11,15 40:1	21:14,16,16,17	8:14 9:21
46:16	42:19	<b>content-neutral</b>	21:20 23:1,6	28:15
<b>commented</b>	<b>concealed</b> 31:21	41:5	23:12 24:22	<b>currently</b> 5:22
38:11	<b>concealing</b>	<b>continue</b> 23:2,16	26:22 27:10,17	8:15 32:15
<b>comments</b> 49:12	33:23 36:14	<b>continuing</b>	29:7,8 30:2,2	45:7
<b>commercial</b>	<b>concentration</b>	28:11	31:18 32:5,15	<b>customers</b> 33:1
18:14 27:9	13:19	<b>control</b> 10:8	33:3,5,18 34:9	<b>cut</b> 37:8
<b>committee</b> 1:1,4	<b>concern</b> 21:23	12:14 20:12	34:11,18 35:5	<b>cycle</b> 42:18
1:9 3:3,22 4:2	49:2	23:4	35:13,15 36:1	
4:10,20,24 5:2	<b>concerning</b> 48:9	<b>convening</b> 6:11	36:11 37:19	
				<b>D</b>

<b>D.C</b> 21:13	<b>DeSart</b> 2:3 3:6,7	38:6 39:4	34:11 35:13	46:8
<b>daily</b> 10:16	26:10,13,17	40:19 41:2,3	36:1,11 37:18	<b>employment</b>
<b>dance</b> 29:19	27:3,15,19	<b>disseminating</b>	45:7,9 46:7	45:3
34:7 40:20	28:4 39:22	39:14	47:8 48:6 50:2	<b>enabling</b> 43:21
<b>dancer</b> 42:15	40:1,6 45:14	<b>distance</b> 14:11	<b>duties</b> 36:18	<b>enacting</b> 5:10
<b>dancing</b> 38:11	46:3 47:10,17	14:17 15:3	<b>duty</b> 30:4	<b>enactments</b> 35:9
<b>dandelion</b> 30:4	49:19	19:3,4		<b>encouraged</b> 5:7
<b>Dark</b> 36:20	<b>describing</b> 31:2	<b>distinction</b>	<b>E</b>	<b>enforce</b> 11:4
<b>darkened</b> 7:2	<b>designed</b> 31:3	39:10	<b>earlier</b> 18:21	42:20 45:20
<b>data</b> 36:3	<b>desires</b> 8:1	<b>distinguished</b>	25:3	46:2
<b>date</b> 9:17	<b>detailed</b> 42:5	31:1	<b>early</b> 11:7 15:7	<b>enforcement</b>
<b>DAWN</b> 2:3	<b>detect</b> 42:20	<b>district</b> 25:24	16:3	4:21 11:8 16:8
<b>day</b> 3:20 13:23	<b>detection</b> 44:19	27:8,8,9 36:2	<b>easier</b> 29:4	16:12 17:24
19:6 33:9	<b>determine</b> 16:15	40:21 42:17	37:17 44:22	22:1,8 33:11
38:10 43:23	19:23 25:22,23	<b>districts</b> 13:24	<b>easily</b> 7:15 43:7	43:6 44:20
<b>days</b> 36:18	<b>Detroit</b> 38:3	14:7 18:8,9,14	43:21	<b>enforcements</b>
<b>deal</b> 9:22 10:15	<b>develop</b> 4:11	19:7 33:7 36:6	<b>Eckhoff</b> 47:4	17:14 18:1
14:5 18:23	10:19 20:10	<b>document</b> 9:15	<b>educate</b> 29:1	<b>engage</b> 17:13
20:14 27:5,14	27:23	9:17 23:20	<b>education</b> 30:18	18:12 29:22
<b>dealing</b> 20:8	<b>developed</b> 18:4	<b>documentary</b>	<b>effect</b> 33:20 45:9	44:8
<b>dealt</b> 11:16	22:18	41:24	<b>effecting</b> 31:14	<b>engaged</b> 17:22
21:19	<b>developing</b> 13:1	<b>documentation</b>	<b>effective</b> 30:10	29:13 35:16,17
<b>decisions</b> 35:22	<b>development</b>	10:13 18:21	30:11 36:9	<b>enjoy</b> 12:24
<b>declared</b> 35:15	17:12 28:17	<b>documents</b> 9:7	<b>effectively</b> 15:10	<b>enjoys</b> 13:9 38:1
<b>decree</b> 19:18	<b>DeVry</b> 30:17	<b>doing</b> 6:18 9:10	37:8	<b>ensure</b> 41:15
20:4	<b>Diamonds</b> 17:9	16:5 25:4	<b>effects</b> 39:13	<b>entered</b> 5:14
<b>defend</b> 41:20	<b>Diego</b> 21:14	36:14,23	40:8 44:18	36:3
<b>defined</b> 33:6	<b>different</b> 26:18	<b>dollars</b> 43:20	<b>effort</b> 6:13 34:12	<b>entertainment</b>
<b>definition</b> 23:7	27:16 30:9	<b>downtown</b> 6:10	<b>efforts</b> 9:11	32:7,7,13
30:23	36:16 41:22	<b>drawn</b> 39:19	33:17 35:16	33:13,16 38:8
<b>deliberations</b>	<b>difficult</b> 29:23	40:4	<b>eighth</b> 15:14	38:22 42:9
10:6	42:20 43:4	<b>drive</b> 38:20	<b>either</b> 25:9	<b>entire</b> 50:9
<b>delinquencies</b>	<b>difficulty</b> 14:19	<b>dropped</b> 34:4	<b>Elliott</b> 2:6 3:12	<b>enumerated</b>
13:22	<b>diminished</b>	<b>DU</b> 1:1,9	3:13 6:17	33:9
<b>demographics</b>	13:20	<b>duly</b> 8:21	15:19 24:4,10	<b>Envy</b> 45:16
21:10,15	<b>disappointed</b>	<b>DuPage</b> 1:10 4:8	24:13,16,19	<b>Ephraim</b> 38:15
<b>dense</b> 21:16	48:7	4:24 5:18,19	28:14	<b>equal</b> 12:18
<b>department</b>	<b>discussed</b> 31:16	5:22 8:12 11:1	<b>Ellyn</b> 6:9,10,10	<b>equally</b> 21:17
10:18 11:1	<b>discussion</b> 10:1	14:23 15:11,14	6:17	<b>Erie</b> 38:9,9,9
21:22 29:8,9	37:10	15:16,17,23	<b>emphasis</b> 31:1	<b>erotic</b> 37:24
29:11 36:4,4,7	<b>diseases</b> 21:23	21:10,12 23:1	<b>employees</b> 18:16	<b>erroneous</b> 35:5
<b>departments</b>	36:8	27:16 29:7	18:18 20:22	<b>especially</b> 11:24
29:10	<b>disgusting</b> 48:15	30:2,2 31:18	33:2 37:14	13:9 48:3
<b>depicting</b> 31:2	<b>disseminate</b>	32:5,15 33:5	43:17 45:3	<b>essentially</b> 9:17

12:5 21:7 34:15 <b>establish</b> 3:24 <b>established</b> 34:2 <b>establishment</b> 33:19 34:1 <b>estate</b> 4:22 36:5 <b>evening</b> 4:18 6:15 <b>event</b> 41:21 <b>eventually</b> 17:19 46:9 <b>everybody</b> 3:18 7:8 9:9 <b>evidence</b> 4:2 10:5,13 11:9 18:22 21:7 22:21 41:24 43:1 <b>evolution</b> 34:8 <b>evolve</b> 12:18 <b>evolved</b> 15:1 36:13 <b>exact</b> 33:21 42:6 <b>exactly</b> 9:9 28:18 <b>example</b> 23:5 32:19 40:17 42:20 <b>exclude</b> 38:18 <b>exempt</b> 24:17 <b>exemption</b> 24:8 24:10,11 <b>exercise</b> 17:23 18:20 40:15 <b>exhibits</b> 5:13 23:22,24 37:9 37:9 <b>exist</b> 22:20 <b>existing</b> 34:13 35:14 <b>exit</b> 32:22 <b>experiencing</b> 21:20	<b>expert</b> 44:2 <b>experts</b> 4:10,23 10:18 17:24 22:1,8,11,17 22:19 <b>explanatory</b> 9:12 <b>explicit</b> 37:3 <b>express</b> 13:5 <b>expression</b> 13:1 13:4 <hr/> <b>F</b> <hr/> <b>facades</b> 29:23 <b>face</b> 10:3 <b>faces</b> 47:11 <b>facilities</b> 18:19 32:7,13 33:9 33:16 48:20 <b>facility</b> 18:16 32:7 33:13 42:9 48:20 <b>fact</b> 5:6 32:5 <b>failed</b> 35:7,8 <b>fairly</b> 38:16 <b>fall</b> 16:18 34:5 <b>familiar</b> 26:14 <b>far</b> 15:22 26:6,7 <b>Farm</b> 1:10 <b>February</b> 49:18 <b>federal</b> 11:13 17:14 19:9,18 35:14 <b>feet</b> 19:4 32:24 40:22,22 <b>female</b> 37:14 <b>figure</b> 13:10 16:16 26:1,5 44:11 <b>final</b> 10:3 <b>find</b> 12:19 16:7 43:13 45:3,5 48:12 <b>finding</b> 20:17	<b>findings</b> 42:6 <b>fine</b> 43:15,21 <b>fire</b> 40:11,13 <b>first</b> 3:24 4:5 5:19 6:1,11,16 8:11,11,16 9:24 12:24 13:3,8 29:2 34:9,19 37:15 37:19 38:12,13 39:8,9 <b>fold</b> 15:12 <b>followed</b> 42:7,7 <b>following</b> 4:17 <b>force</b> 34:14 <b>forced</b> 15:10 <b>foreclosed</b> 37:10 <b>foregoing</b> 50:7 <b>forest</b> 14:1 19:7 33:10 36:2 40:12 <b>form</b> 38:7 <b>formed</b> 3:2 6:12 <b>forms</b> 19:23 <b>forth</b> 18:2 50:10 <b>forward</b> 4:1,4 9:18 10:22 21:5 23:21 25:20 48:18 <b>found</b> 14:4 16:20 17:3,17 18:16 19:10 21:2 32:5,11 <b>fourth</b> 4:16 <b>framework</b> 46:23 <b>free</b> 40:10 <b>frequently</b> 44:6 <b>fringe</b> 38:12 <b>front</b> 7:3 30:16 <b>fronts</b> 29:23 <b>full</b> 5:9 <b>fun</b> 43:3 <b>further</b> 37:10	41:17 <b>furtherance</b> 10:15 13:13 <b>further</b> 41:11 <hr/> <b>G</b> <hr/> <b>game</b> 6:23 <b>Gary</b> 6:23 28:17 <b>geez</b> 37:17 <b>general</b> 20:19 29:16 <b>generalizing</b> 14:16 <b>generally</b> 12:15 14:5,15,16 21:11 32:16 <b>gentlemen's</b> 17:9 31:19 <b>getting</b> 22:3 <b>GIS</b> 35:5 36:4 <b>give</b> 11:16 42:1 <b>giving</b> 46:6,13 46:21,23 <b>glad</b> 48:8,16 49:5 <b>Glen</b> 6:9,10,10 6:17 <b>go</b> 6:4 12:18 15:2 16:5 28:23 32:2 34:8 36:19 37:18 41:20 43:2,8,8,9 45:3 47:14,21 48:8 48:24 49:5 <b>goals</b> 3:22 4:5 48:18 <b>goes</b> 26:6,7 27:6 28:5 <b>going</b> 4:4 5:15 5:19 7:1 8:10 8:11,16 9:4,6 9:11,14,14 16:12 18:20	20:24 22:5 24:19 26:22 27:13 28:11 30:16,17,20 31:4,5 32:2,16 32:18,20,21,23 32:24 39:6,7 42:3,4 44:3,7 45:3,4 46:17 46:18 48:18 <b>good</b> 3:1 28:9 <b>Google</b> 7:14 <b>Gotcha</b> 24:16 <b>government</b> 12:11,13,21 13:13,13 16:6 41:11,12 <b>government's</b> 13:8 41:18 <b>governmental</b> 39:21 40:5 41:12 <b>grandfathered</b> 43:12 <b>Grant</b> 47:4 <b>great</b> 49:1,11 <b>greater</b> 41:17 <b>Greg</b> 49:13 <b>ground</b> 46:22 <b>group</b> 49:1 <b>grown</b> 7:12 <b>guess</b> 48:5 49:17 <hr/> <b>H</b> <hr/> <b>H-a-y-m-a-n</b> 29:6 <b>half</b> 17:21 23:5 <b>hand</b> 26:23 <b>handed</b> 9:13,13 9:15 <b>handle</b> 16:16 <b>happened</b> 28:15 28:18 34:3 <b>happens</b> 27:8
--	--	---	--	---

<p><b>happy</b> 45:13  <b>harm</b> 13:22  <b>harming</b> 48:11  <b>Hart</b> 49:13  <b>hat</b> 32:12  <b>hate</b> 43:3  <b>Hayman</b> 2:13            5:16 8:17            19:13 28:24            29:2,2,6,6            36:24 39:24            40:2,7 41:10            45:18 46:4,11            47:19  <b>health</b> 4:21 7:5            10:18 12:15,22            21:22 36:7            48:1  <b>hear</b> 4:24 5:15            16:11,11 29:5            42:3 43:10  <b>heard</b> 12:2            19:22 40:10            43:16  <b>hearing</b> 1:5 4:13            4:21 11:12            25:10 50:6  <b>hearings</b> 4:9            5:11 9:19  <b>heart</b> 7:24  <b>held</b> 35:6  <b>help</b> 10:20 48:18  <b>helps</b> 43:24  <b>hereinabove</b>            50:10  <b>Hey</b> 11:21  <b>Hi</b> 47:17  <b>high</b> 7:15,16,17  <b>higher</b> 13:19  <b>highest</b> 39:16  <b>Hillside</b> 6:10  <b>hire</b> 42:15  <b>history</b> 29:1  <b>hold</b> 4:15,18</p>	<p><b>holding</b> 23:10            47:23  <b>honest</b> 28:14  <b>hopefully</b> 12:18            22:22 44:14  <b>Hoss</b> 2:11 5:19            8:19 9:3 10:23            15:20 23:22            24:1,2,8,11,14            24:17,21 25:3            25:18 26:12,14            26:21 27:4,18            27:20 36:23  <b>hosted</b> 6:16  <b>Hot</b> 7:6 26:13            27:16  <b>house</b> 40:12  <b>human</b> 22:7,15            42:15 48:1,11            49:1</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>I</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>ideal</b> 8:3  <b>identified</b> 23:12  <b>identify</b> 43:7  <b>identity</b> 33:23  <b>ILCS</b> 44:17  <b>Illinois</b> 1:11            15:15 32:8  <b>illuminated</b>            32:22  <b>imagination</b>            29:20  <b>imaginations</b>            29:21  <b>impact</b> 14:12            16:10 20:15,19            20:20,22,23  <b>impacted</b> 18:13  <b>impacting</b> 5:18            32:21  <b>impacts</b> 4:7,12            5:23 13:14,17            18:3,17,23</p>	<p>21:3  <b>impasse</b> 18:10            26:8  <b>implementing</b>            44:10  <b>important</b> 20:2            41:11  <b>impose</b> 4:14 5:1            44:9 45:6  <b>imposed</b> 34:13  <b>imposes</b> 42:13  <b>improperly</b>            41:15  <b>inappropriate</b>            49:4  <b>incidental</b> 41:16  <b>Incidentally</b>            46:4  <b>incidents</b> 22:2  <b>include</b> 18:7,17            20:11 23:2,7,9            31:10  <b>included</b> 35:1  <b>includes</b> 10:10  <b>incorporated</b>            30:2  <b>individual</b> 43:16  <b>industrial</b> 7:23            14:9,9 18:8,8            19:2 33:7            40:21 42:17  <b>industry</b> 44:7            47:7  <b>information</b>            5:17,21 8:14            11:16 21:18            35:5 43:1 49:8  <b>ingredients</b>            15:24  <b>inherently</b> 11:23  <b>injunction</b> 30:6  <b>inspection</b> 43:8  <b>instance</b> 9:24  <b>instances</b> 21:15</p>	<p>42:21  <b>intended</b> 14:20            31:3  <b>intention</b> 4:15            21:5  <b>interest</b> 6:21            12:12,14,22            13:8,13 38:2,3            39:18,21 40:3            40:5 41:12,12            41:18 47:6  <b>interesting</b>            26:21  <b>interests</b> 14:3,4  <b>intermediate</b>            41:6,19  <b>internally</b> 11:12  <b>interpret</b> 11:3  <b>interpreted</b>            37:20  <b>intuitive</b> 12:1  <b>intuitively</b> 11:23  <b>investigation</b> 7:6  <b>investigations</b>            42:24  <b>invited</b> 5:1  <b>involved</b> 29:17            30:2  <b>involvement</b>            31:15  <b>involving</b> 30:21            34:11  <b>irrespective</b>            23:14  <b>isolated</b> 33:8  <b>issue</b> 14:21            26:22,23 27:5            29:1  <b>issued</b> 16:23  <b>issues</b> 5:6 7:10            9:22,23 10:2            10:15,16 11:5            16:8 21:20            22:23</p>	<p><b>items</b> 10:1 12:24</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>J</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>JAMES</b> 2:4  <b>January</b> 1:5  <b>Jersey</b> 38:14,17  <b>job</b> 29:4 36:14            43:3  <b>judge</b> 37:4  <b>judicial</b> 37:1  <b>Julie</b> 2:2 3:1            6:19  <b>jump</b> 28:2  <b>jurisdiction</b>            32:11  <b>jurisdictions</b>            18:23 19:2            21:9,11 22:19            32:9 35:23  <b>Justice</b> 38:10  <b>juvenile</b> 13:22  <b>juxtaposition</b>            13:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>K</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>keep</b> 14:14 41:8  <b>Kelly</b> 6:2,7  <b>Kenneyville</b>            28:8  <b>kind</b> 6:16 7:1            25:24 28:20            32:11 46:13,22            48:7  <b>know</b> 6:19 7:15            7:24 12:3 17:7            23:8 24:24            25:5,21 26:1,6            26:15 28:7,12            28:20 30:8            32:19 37:7            40:12 42:24            43:19 45:16            48:14,14,19            49:3</p>
--	---	---	--	--



<b>knowledge</b> 48:3 48:19	41:14	<b>located</b> 16:22 17:9 18:7,14 19:16	32:2,6	24:22 28:10
<b>known</b> 17:8 48:5	<b>legitimate</b> 45:15 45:16,18	<b>location</b> 14:6,17 15:3 28:15 30:6,9 34:17 48:22	<b>matters</b> 31:2,3 <b>MC</b> 2:10	<b>morning</b> 11:21 25:4
<b>knows</b> 7:8	<b>lengthy</b> 42:5	<b>long</b> 28:24 48:6	<b>mean</b> 13:5 17:11 28:5 30:16	<b>motivated</b> 41:15
<b>Kottmeyer</b> 47:5	<b>let's</b> 5:24 25:2 28:14	<b>longer</b> 26:19	<b>meaning</b> 22:10	<b>Mount</b> 38:15
<hr/> <b>L</b> <hr/>	<b>letter</b> 45:23	<b>look</b> 7:14 12:12 13:9,14,15,17 13:18 21:11 26:16 44:6 48:22	<b>means</b> 30:24	<b>mountain</b> 41:24
<b>L</b> 1:11 50:1	<b>letterhead</b> 30:9	<b>locational</b> 35:2 42:13	<b>meeting</b> 3:4 5:15 6:1,14,15 41:23 47:24 49:18,23	<b>move</b> 10:22 26:17
<b>Lake</b> 19:16 28:8	<b>level</b> 39:16	<b>long</b> 28:24 48:6	41:23 47:24 49:18,23	<b>moved</b> 7:7
<b>land</b> 9:23 11:14 12:7,7,10,10 12:16 13:1 14:5,14,20 25:11 26:6,7 46:14,22	<b>license</b> 24:11,13 24:15 25:2 44:23,24 46:9 46:10,11	<b>looking</b> 20:9 30:17	<b>meetings</b> 4:15 4:17,18,20 5:2 9:5,18 10:22 22:13	<b>movement</b> 16:21
<b>large</b> 38:18	<b>licensing</b> 10:12 20:13 22:18 23:4 25:1,19 25:20 33:19 34:1,23 40:24 43:4 44:20 45:20,22	<b>Looks</b> 3:18	<b>Megan</b> 1:11 50:1	<b>movie</b> 38:5 40:12
<b>larger</b> 15:17	<b>lighting</b> 16:9 18:11	<b>lot</b> 18:16 21:2 25:15 47:1,6,6 48:23	<b>member</b> 2:3,4,5 2:6,7 3:6,7,8,9 3:10,11,12,13 3:14,15 47:18 49:14	<b>movies</b> 38:1
<b>largest</b> 15:14,16 15:22	<b>limit</b> 6:4	<b>low</b> 30:7	<b>members</b> 2:1 5:5 47:2	<b>moving</b> 4:1 21:5 23:21
<b>late</b> 6:22 15:7 16:21	<b>limitation</b> 19:3	<b>lucky</b> 28:7	<b>mention</b> 49:13	<b>multiple</b> 42:21 42:23
<b>law</b> 4:21 5:13 10:4 13:12 16:12 17:24 18:22 22:1,8 33:11 35:14 44:16 45:19	<b>limitations</b> 20:8 42:12	<hr/> <b>M</b> <hr/>	<b>mentioned</b> 16:3 22:12 25:11	<b>Multiply</b> 43:17
<b>laws</b> 5:17 35:22	<b>limited</b> 5:3 43:14 45:7	<b>Madam</b> 23:20	<b>method</b> 41:1	<b>municipalities</b> 15:8
<b>lawsuit</b> 17:6 34:11	<b>liquor</b> 10:8,11 20:12 23:3 24:13,14 28:3 36:19	<b>magazines</b> 36:20	<b>mid</b> 33:21,22	<b>municipality</b> 15:13,14,16,21 15:22
<b>lay</b> 46:13,22	<b>little</b> 7:5 18:11 20:24 29:21 30:12 31:23 32:14 42:2	<b>majority</b> 32:8	<b>middle</b> 17:4	<b>mushrooms</b> 28:20
<b>learn</b> 47:2	<b>live</b> 20:20	<b>making</b> 43:17,20	<b>Mini-Theaters</b> 37:23	<b>muster</b> 35:20
<b>learned</b> 30:11 36:13	<b>Liz</b> 46:14 47:3 47:17,21 49:9	<b>manifests</b> 16:10	<b>minute</b> 46:19	<hr/> <b>N</b> <hr/>
<b>lease</b> 16:5	<b>local</b> 11:11,11 27:9 43:22	<b>manner</b> 40:9,15 40:18 41:1	<b>minutes</b> 5:4,4 8:9	<b>name</b> 3:1 6:7 10:23 17:8 29:6 32:5 47:12,12
<b>leave</b> 45:3	<b>locally</b> 39:4 43:23	<b>maps</b> 7:15	<b>mistakes</b> 30:12	<b>names</b> 32:4,12 47:13
<b>leaving</b> 22:10	<b>locate</b> 39:3	<b>marked</b> 5:13	<b>mitigated</b> 18:9	<b>Naperville</b> 15:17
<b>legal</b> 13:6,15,16 19:16,20 20:4 30:24		<b>Mary</b> 47:3	<b>model</b> 44:13	<b>narrowly</b> 39:19 40:3
<b>legally</b> 34:15		<b>massage</b> 17:2 33:19,24 34:1 34:2,4,22,23 45:15,16,18,20	<b>Montessori</b> 7:20	<b>nature</b> 27:15
<b>legislation</b> 5:10 19:8		<b>massages</b> 46:6,8	<b>Montgomery</b> 21:13	<b>navigate</b> 7:13
<b>legislative</b> 8:1		<b>material</b> 37:24 40:19	<b>month</b> 4:16 6:22 7:1 23:5 45:1,2 45:5	<b>near</b> 28:16
		<b>materials</b> 30:22	<b>months</b> 23:6	<b>nearby</b> 7:20
				<b>necessary</b> 4:18 7:10 41:17 42:1

<b>need</b> 8:16 28:12 41:20 43:2,8 46:23	20:3 33:22 35:11,21	27:1 31:18 45:7	32:9	<b>Paul</b> 2:11 5:18 5:19 8:11,12 10:23 23:22 24:1,24 28:19 28:22,23 29:3 31:16 35:17 36:10 42:12 46:13,21 47:5
<b>needed</b> 4:19 17:3 31:9	<b>O</b>	<b>operation</b> 27:11	<b>organs</b> 31:2	<b>Paul's</b> 34:24 36:18
<b>needing</b> 42:5	<b>o'clock</b> 1:6	<b>operational</b> 14:22 16:19 20:14 23:17 27:4 42:14 44:19	<b>oriented</b> 30:23 30:24	<b>penalties</b> 44:24
<b>negative</b> 4:7,11 5:23 45:14,17	<b>O'Connor</b> 38:10	<b>operations</b> 10:20 13:21 14:19 15:1 16:13 18:1,10 20:9,17 25:12 25:21 27:22 29:16 30:20 31:22	<b>ork</b> 46:22	<b>people</b> 11:19,19 11:20,23 15:18 15:23 16:4,8 16:14 18:12,23 20:19 21:21 22:6,7,10,11 22:13,18 23:10 23:11 24:5 25:3,20 30:19 47:6 48:11,14 48:24,24 49:4
<b>neighborhoods</b> 38:4	<b>oath</b> 8:21	<b>operator</b> 18:15 20:21 29:21 38:5	<b>outer</b> 38:12	<b>people's</b> 13:2
<b>neighbors</b> 16:11	<b>objective</b> 31:22	<b>opinion</b> 7:5	<b>outlets</b> 32:23	<b>perfect</b> 43:24
<b>net</b> 12:10	<b>objectives</b> 3:22 4:5	<b>opportunity</b> 4:9 11:3,9	<b>owner</b> 17:12	<b>perform</b> 43:6
<b>neutral</b> 39:12	<b>obtain</b> 43:1	<b>order</b> 3:4 46:23	<b>owning</b> 12:8	<b>period</b> 19:12 30:4 33:20 44:24 45:8,11
<b>never</b> 44:3	<b>obvious</b> 37:11	<b>ordinance</b> 12:13 12:19 13:16 14:6 17:18 18:6 20:7,12 20:13 23:6,7 23:17 25:14 30:10 31:9 32:6,14,17,18 33:5,7,13,19 33:20 34:1,6 34:23 35:6,15 41:16 43:24 44:8 45:20	<b>Ozog</b> 46:10 47:3	<b>permitted</b> 27:7
<b>new</b> 10:19 19:10 30:8 35:9 38:14,17,17,20 46:16 47:11 49:15	<b>occur</b> 22:2	<b>ordinances</b> 5:10 5:21 8:15 10:11 16:18 17:4,20,22 33:3	<b>paired</b> 17:19	<b>person</b> 5:4 42:16
<b>newly</b> 3:2 6:12	<b>offer</b> 3:23 5:3 7:21,21	<b>organization</b> 17:6	<b>Palmetto</b> 17:6,8 35:4	<b>person's</b> 31:2
<b>nice</b> 45:23	<b>office</b> 10:17,17 19:14 36:1,3	<b>organizations</b>	<b>Paps</b> 38:9,10	<b>phase-in</b> 45:8
<b>Nick</b> 47:5	<b>officers</b> 16:12 43:3		<b>park</b> 13:24 19:7	<b>photographs</b> 37:11
<b>noise</b> 16:9	<b>official</b> 36:7		<b>parking</b> 33:1	<b>photography</b> 7:7 29:18
<b>nonconforming</b> 34:16	<b>officials</b> 4:22		<b>parks</b> 33:9	<b>pick</b> 36:19
<b>nonzoning</b> 31:6	<b>oh</b> 28:9 46:14		<b>parlors</b> 17:2 33:24 34:2 45:16,18	<b>picture</b> 48:21,23
<b>Noonan</b> 2:7 3:14 3:15	<b>okay</b> 8:9,20 23:24 24:16 26:9 39:24 41:10 46:20 47:14,15 49:11		<b>part</b> 7:22 11:8 14:21 27:16 31:10 33:17 34:4,8,10 44:12 47:3	<b>pictures</b> 48:20
<b>normal</b> 16:13	<b>old</b> 6:22 36:18 46:16 47:9 49:15		<b>participate</b> 24:5	<b>piece</b> 11:21
<b>north</b> 6:8 7:7,16 7:17 17:9 28:16	<b>once</b> 9:12 16:18 19:1 20:3 21:6 24:21 26:4,5 39:19,20		<b>particular</b> 29:15	<b>place</b> 19:8 28:6 39:20 40:9,15 40:17 42:11 43:12 50:9
<b>northwest</b> 19:17	<b>ones</b> 25:6		<b>particularly</b> 13:3,4 14:23	
<b>notably</b> 11:5	<b>open</b> 5:24 7:2,14 27:16 28:1 31:17		<b>parts</b> 21:16,17	
<b>note</b> 4:3 47:1	<b>opened</b> 26:20		<b>passed</b> 24:22 35:20	
<b>noticed</b> 6:21	<b>openly</b> 31:17		<b>passing</b> 41:16	
<b>notices</b> 16:23	<b>operable</b> 33:14		<b>pastor</b> 6:1,3,6,9 8:5 14:23 22:12	
<b>notion</b> 12:21 23:9	<b>operate</b> 16:2 39:1		<b>patrons</b> 18:15 18:18 20:23	
<b>nude</b> 38:11 40:20	<b>operating</b> 16:14			
<b>nudity</b> 23:8 37:13				
<b>number</b> 19:14				

<p><b>places</b> 13:24 19:6,7 <b>plan</b> 4:11 <b>planner</b> 36:1 <b>planning</b> 2:11 5:20 8:13 10:24 11:10 <b>plant</b> 7:13 <b>plays</b> 7:17 29:3 <b>please</b> 3:5 4:2 39:23 47:12 <b>plus</b> 43:18 <b>point</b> 15:1 17:16 17:22 19:9 25:15,21,23 49:17 <b>pointed</b> 14:24 36:10 42:12 <b>points</b> 10:2 <b>police</b> 36:2 46:7 <b>pop</b> 30:5 36:12 <b>popping</b> 28:6 <b>pops</b> 28:21 <b>pornographic</b> 40:19 <b>pose</b> 29:16 <b>posed</b> 29:18 <b>possible</b> 22:8 32:12 <b>possibly</b> 10:11 45:14,17 <b>posting</b> 9:7 <b>power</b> 41:11 <b>preamble</b> 12:12 <b>precisely</b> 39:19 40:4 <b>predecessor</b> 34:24 <b>predicated</b> 35:4 <b>prepared</b> 39:20 <b>present</b> 2:1,9 19:6,12 29:12 <b>presentations</b> 8:10</p>	<p><b>presenting</b> 9:10 33:23 <b>Preserve</b> 36:2 <b>preserves</b> 14:1 19:7 33:10 <b>preserving</b> 38:3 <b>president</b> 6:17 <b>Previously</b> 33:17 <b>principal</b> 30:8 <b>principals</b> 30:7 <b>principle</b> 40:14 <b>printouts</b> 37:4 <b>private</b> 22:8 <b>probably</b> 30:3 40:10 41:22 <b>problem</b> 26:19 26:22 35:3 37:19 48:6 <b>problematic</b> 27:14 <b>proceed</b> 3:19 8:10 <b>proceeding</b> 9:18 31:7 35:3 <b>proceedings</b> 1:8 5:8 9:9 49:22 50:5 <b>process</b> 3:24 4:15 9:7 11:8 17:21,23 18:21 20:10,17 27:21 31:9,14 35:21 36:9 42:4,7 <b>products</b> 24:6 <b>professionals</b> 4:23 <b>program</b> 10:9 11:12 20:11 22:24 23:19 25:11,19,19 27:24 44:5,16 <b>programs</b> 15:1 22:18,18,20</p>	<p><b>prohibition</b> 33:14 <b>properly</b> 46:24 <b>property</b> 11:21 11:24 12:2,5,8 12:16,17 13:20 16:4,5 17:6,8 17:12 26:10,12 26:20 27:6,12 28:16 30:21 42:21 <b>propose</b> 9:8 10:4 10:22 31:5 <b>proposing</b> 9:19 17:23 <b>propriety</b> 25:12 27:23 <b>prosecuting</b> 29:14 <b>prospective</b> 17:5 28:1 <b>prospectively</b> 17:11 <b>prostitution</b> 22:5 <b>protect</b> 12:16 40:11 <b>protected</b> 4:14 19:5 37:22 38:2,13 41:13 <b>protecting</b> 37:20 <b>protection</b> 38:12 <b>protects</b> 12:11 <b>prove</b> 25:14 43:4 <b>provide</b> 4:9 5:21 8:14 11:9 21:6 32:3 35:9 36:8 <b>provided</b> 4:2 <b>providers</b> 4:22 <b>providing</b> 3:21 5:16 18:21 46:8 <b>provision</b> 13:12 24:21</p>	<p><b>provocative</b> 37:7 <b>proximity</b> 13:23 <b>public</b> 1:5 4:1,10 4:19,21 5:3 6:1 8:7 9:6 12:15 29:16 37:2 38:6 50:6 <b>pulled</b> 32:12 <b>purchase</b> 24:6 <b>purpose</b> 4:8,13 12:9 <b>pushed</b> 15:11 <b>put</b> 14:7 19:1,8 23:20 24:21 26:3 45:8 <b>putting</b> 16:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>Q</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>quality</b> 38:3 <b>question</b> 47:18 <b>questions</b> 5:1 9:1,20 24:2 28:22,23 45:12 46:12,15 <b>quorum</b> 3:18 41:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>R</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>Racich</b> 47:5 <b>ramifications</b> 45:15,17 49:3 <b>Ranch</b> 6:8 <b>range</b> 17:1 <b>rates</b> 13:20 <b>reach</b> 15:2 <b>reached</b> 20:8 <b>react</b> 16:6,7 25:5 <b>read</b> 39:22 <b>readily</b> 19:6 <b>real</b> 4:22 9:3 31:22 36:5 <b>realize</b> 6:23 11:23</p>	<p><b>really</b> 14:20 25:1 39:23 48:8,15 48:18 <b>reason</b> 9:3 15:11 25:5 <b>reasonable</b> 35:9 45:11 <b>reasons</b> 45:19 <b>recall</b> 33:21 42:8 42:10 <b>receive</b> 5:12 38:7 <b>received</b> 4:6 <b>recommend</b> 48:2 <b>recommendati...</b> 44:15 <b>recommendati...</b> 31:11,11 42:6 <b>record</b> 5:9,14 9:5,12 23:22 35:23 41:15 <b>recreation</b> 13:24 <b>reduction</b> 19:14 <b>refer</b> 29:14 <b>reference</b> 32:6 <b>referred</b> 32:9 <b>reformed</b> 22:22 <b>regard</b> 41:14 <b>regarding</b> 4:5,7 4:15,23 5:17 <b>regular</b> 9:22 <b>regulate</b> 12:10 14:22 31:4 <b>regulating</b> 14:19 41:1 45:24 <b>regulation</b> 4:23 24:18 33:14 39:18 40:1 41:10,16 43:15 44:5,10,11,16 44:17 <b>regulations</b> 10:8 10:8,12,19</p>
---	---	---	--	---

11:4 12:8,9,14 13:2 14:5,5,10 15:2,5,10 17:15,17 18:4 18:5 19:10 20:14 23:3 26:6 27:10 31:5,5,6,24 32:17 34:9,13 34:19 35:8 39:6,11,11,15 40:8,24 41:5 41:21 42:9 43:5,11,22,22 45:22 46:4 <b>regulatory</b> 10:9 20:11 22:17,24 23:19 25:19 27:24 28:2 31:22 <b>reincorporate</b> 30:8 <b>relationship</b> 22:15 <b>relative</b> 9:21 10:18 11:5,9 12:22 13:4,8 17:15,20 21:1 21:18,23 22:7 22:9 26:7,22 27:11 <b>relaxation</b> 29:19 34:7 <b>relaxed</b> 41:6 <b>relocate</b> 34:14 <b>relocated</b> 28:10 28:17 <b>rely</b> 5:9 <b>remain</b> 34:16 <b>remarks</b> 3:19 5:24 <b>remedies</b> 43:14 <b>remedy</b> 38:23 <b>remember</b> 37:4	<b>Renahan</b> 2:2 3:1 3:2,16,17 6:4 8:5,20,24 23:24 24:24 25:17 26:9 28:19 41:9 46:12,18,21 47:14,21 49:7 49:11,20 <b>rent</b> 30:19 <b>rental</b> 30:18 <b>report</b> 50:8 <b>reported</b> 50:5 <b>reporter</b> 4:3 29:5 41:22 47:16 50:14 <b>Reporters</b> 50:4 <b>reports</b> 21:8 36:5 43:16 44:2 <b>represent</b> 29:9 35:17 <b>represented</b> 17:7,7 29:8 <b>representing</b> 29:11 <b>request</b> 50:2 <b>require</b> 40:20,21 <b>requirements</b> 14:11,14,17,18 15:3 19:5 45:8 <b>requires</b> 31:14 33:8 42:23 <b>requiring</b> 25:1 <b>rescind</b> 44:23 <b>reserve</b> 9:1 <b>residences</b> 40:22 <b>resident</b> 6:7 <b>residential</b> 8:2 14:8,8,13,13 18:14 <b>residents</b> 4:7 <b>response</b> 34:10 <b>responsibility</b>	45:24 <b>responsible</b> 34:24 <b>restrict</b> 8:2 <b>restricted</b> 7:23 <b>restriction</b> 40:9 40:18 <b>restrictions</b> 4:14 7:13 35:2 41:17 42:13 <b>restricts</b> 33:6 40:14 <b>result</b> 34:18 35:5 <b>resulted</b> 18:6,24 <b>retroactive</b> 43:11 45:6 <b>retroactively</b> 16:15 17:13 <b>revealed</b> 35:3 <b>review</b> 8:12 10:5 39:16 41:14 <b>reviewed</b> 41:5 <b>rid</b> 27:12 28:9 28:12,20 <b>right</b> 8:5 12:5 13:8 17:4 24:19 25:17,23 26:3,8 27:3 28:2,24 <b>rights</b> 12:7 13:3 13:4 <b>Road</b> 1:11 6:8 28:16 <b>robberies</b> 21:3 22:4 <b>robbery</b> 18:17 <b>roll</b> 3:5 <b>Romak</b> 1:11 50:1 <b>room</b> 47:14 49:20 <b>routine</b> 43:9,9 <b>rules</b> 10:19 <b>rural</b> 21:17	<b>Rutledge</b> 47:3 <hr/> <b>S</b> <hr/> <b>safer</b> 18:11 <b>safety</b> 12:10,15 12:22 <b>sale</b> 26:10,15 <b>SAM</b> 2:5 <b>San</b> 21:14 <b>Sandra</b> 38:10 <b>saw</b> 15:7 37:9 <b>saying</b> 9:11 41:2 45:23 <b>says</b> 24:18 25:8 <b>scales</b> 43:24 <b>scan</b> 36:20 <b>Schad</b> 38:15 <b>schedule</b> 4:19 <b>schematic</b> 23:21 <b>scheme</b> 31:22 43:4 <b>school</b> 7:20 29:19 36:6 <b>schooler</b> 7:17 <b>schoolers</b> 7:15 7:16 <b>schools</b> 7:14 13:23 19:6 33:9 40:23 <b>scope</b> 8:14 34:5 <b>scrutinize</b> 41:14 <b>scrutiny</b> 35:20 39:17 41:6,19 <b>SEAN</b> 2:7 <b>seated</b> 29:9 <b>second</b> 4:16 <b>secondary</b> 4:7 4:12 13:14 16:10 18:3,17 18:22 21:3 40:8 44:18 <b>secondary-int...</b> 13:17 <b>section</b> 33:6,11	36:21 <b>sections</b> 15:17 <b>sector</b> 22:8 <b>security</b> 18:11 <b>see</b> 7:2,18,19,22 9:9,24 11:22 12:13 14:7 16:4 28:12 32:3,9 <b>Seeing</b> 8:9 <b>seek</b> 31:4 <b>seen</b> 14:23 19:13 <b>self</b> 9:12 <b>sell</b> 37:13 <b>send</b> 48:23,24 <b>senior</b> 6:9 <b>sense</b> 12:1 <b>separate</b> 14:15 <b>series</b> 4:20 <b>serve</b> 6:8 <b>served</b> 23:18 <b>service</b> 4:22 6:13 48:1 <b>services</b> 23:12 34:5 <b>set</b> 10:7 12:10 17:20 30:9 32:19 45:21 50:10 <b>setback</b> 14:13 <b>setbacks</b> 14:11 <b>sex</b> 6:15 31:2 <b>sexual</b> 23:9 31:3 31:3 <b>sexually</b> 30:23 30:24 <b>sexually-orien...</b> 30:21 32:10 33:4 <b>share</b> 43:18 <b>sharpen</b> 23:16 <b>Sheila</b> 47:3 <b>sheriff's</b> 10:17 36:1,5 46:7
--	--	--	---	---

<b>shift</b> 43:17	<b>soon</b> 44:11	25:4 45:10	21:8 35:22	<b>take</b> 3:5 31:13
<b>shop</b> 26:20 30:9 32:20	<b>sorry</b> 15:15 48:15	<b>starting</b> 29:8	<b>studios</b> 29:18,19 34:7	42:23 48:23
<b>short</b> 6:6 16:18 17:19 33:12	<b>sort</b> 10:21 12:9 14:2 15:24	<b>starts</b> 17:12,12	<b>subject</b> 32:16 39:16 43:14	<b>taken</b> 1:8,9 43:18 50:6,9
<b>shorthand</b> 50:5 50:14	20:7,7 23:16	<b>state</b> 9:21 15:15 32:8 39:18	45:10 48:3	<b>talk</b> 18:22 21:22 22:2,19 30:14 39:5
<b>Shots</b> 7:7 26:13 27:16	23:21 26:3,7	45:19,21,21,23	50:3	<b>talked</b> 11:15 22:3
<b>shout</b> 40:13	37:21 40:14 44:4	46:11	<b>submit</b> 5:6	<b>talking</b> 10:2 22:14 30:15
<b>shouting</b> 40:11	<b>sorts</b> 31:24 41:20 45:22	<b>state's</b> 2:13 5:16 10:17 19:13	<b>substantial</b> 38:16 39:21 40:5	<b>talks</b> 10:1,1,2,3
<b>show</b> 23:24 41:7 42:21	<b>sounds</b> 43:3	29:7 36:3	<b>suburb</b> 38:17	<b>target</b> 33:3 34:20
<b>showed</b> 18:2	<b>South</b> 1:10	<b>statement</b> 9:14 23:21	<b>Suburban</b> 49:8	<b>targeted</b> 39:6
<b>showing</b> 10:15	<b>spa-type</b> 33:18 34:3	<b>statements</b> 5:6	<b>successful</b> 44:10	<b>technically</b> 19:21
<b>shut</b> 44:21 45:1 45:2 46:9	<b>spas</b> 17:1 29:14 29:14 33:22 34:7	<b>statistics</b> 36:8	<b>sued</b> 17:14	<b>tell</b> 11:18
<b>side</b> 6:8	<b>speak</b> 8:11 47:17	<b>status</b> 5:17	<b>suggesting</b> 17:15 27:2	<b>tend</b> 29:15
<b>signage</b> 7:3 16:8	<b>speaker</b> 6:1	<b>statute</b> 43:21	<b>Sun</b> 36:21	<b>tender</b> 9:8 10:4
<b>signs</b> 32:22	<b>speaking</b> 28:19	<b>statutory</b> 31:13 32:8	<b>supplement</b> 44:4 19:11	<b>tendering</b> 10:14 37:4
<b>similar</b> 17:23 18:20 21:9,12 21:14,15,19	<b>special-call</b> 4:18	<b>stay</b> 12:17 29:8 40:22	<b>support</b> 7:21 19:11	<b>term</b> 32:8
<b>simple</b> 3:22	<b>specific</b> 22:3 33:3 39:7	<b>stenographer</b> 47:11	<b>supported</b> 19:9 19:10	<b>terms</b> 22:15 38:21 50:3
<b>simplified</b> 44:20	<b>specifically</b> 30:20	<b>stick</b> 45:4	<b>suppose</b> 36:23	<b>testified</b> 11:13
<b>simply</b> 12:8 15:3 41:6 44:23	<b>specified</b> 23:9	<b>stop</b> 36:23 45:24	<b>suppression</b> 41:13	<b>testify</b> 11:9 36:6 36:7
<b>single</b> 43:7	<b>speech</b> 12:24 13:4 37:21	<b>stops</b> 14:17	<b>sure</b> 3:6 12:17 37:16 47:16	<b>testimony</b> 1:8 4:2,4,9 5:1 9:2 10:14 21:6 25:8 35:24 42:3 43:10 50:6,9
<b>site</b> 36:3,18	39:13 40:10,16 40:19 41:4,13	<b>store</b> 19:19 31:19	<b>survived</b> 35:19	<b>text</b> 18:24 35:1 35:18,24 37:11
<b>sites</b> 35:12,12 39:2	<b>spirit</b> 47:10	<b>stores</b> 36:19 39:2	<b>suspend</b> 44:24	<b>thank</b> 6:11,18 6:19 8:4,5 26:9 28:4 40:6 46:3 46:13,21 47:23 49:7,11,20
<b>situation</b> 11:20 13:21	<b>spoke</b> 22:14	<b>stormwater</b> 32:17 36:4	<b>swear</b> 8:16,17	<b>Thanks</b> 3:20
<b>size</b> 21:15 33:2	<b>sports</b> 7:17 36:21	<b>Street</b> 19:17 28:8	<b>sweet</b> 6:6	<b>theater</b> 38:5
<b>slowly</b> 39:23	<b>spot</b> 30:5	<b>strict</b> 39:17,24	<b>Swift</b> 28:16	<b>theft</b> 22:4
<b>snap</b> 48:21	<b>spots</b> 33:1	<b>stricter</b> 28:12	<b>switching</b> 34:6	
<b>SOBs</b> 32:10	<b>spring</b> 7:17,18	<b>string</b> 44:21	<b>sworn</b> 9:4	
<b>social</b> 4:22	<b>staff</b> 8:10 11:18 36:2 43:6,6	<b>stringent</b> 15:9	<b>syllabus</b> 9:18 10:21	
<b>sold</b> 26:18,24 27:6,23 28:16	<b>stand</b> 49:17	<b>strip</b> 17:1	<b>system</b> 30:24	
<b>solution</b> 7:22	<b>standards</b> 34:2	<b>stronger</b> 18:5	<hr/> <b>T</b> <hr/>	
<b>somebody</b> 48:21	<b>start</b> 3:21 16:2,5 16:11,11,14	<b>struggle</b> 15:4	<b>tag</b> 47:12	
<b>someplace</b> 28:1 45:4,5		<b>studies</b> 5:13 10:4 13:10 18:22	<b>tail</b> 26:4	
			<b>tailored</b> 39:19 40:3	

<b>thefts</b> 18:17	45:11 47:9	<b>typically</b> 17:11	25:13,21,23	<b>victim</b> 42:15
<b>theory</b> 15:16	48:6 50:9	<hr/>	26:2,2,6,7,24	<b>village</b> 6:17
25:7	<b>times</b> 12:3 36:21	<b>U</b>	27:1,1,6,7,7,11	<b>violation</b> 16:23
<b>therapeutic</b>	43:2 48:24	<b>ultimately</b> 10:6	27:12,13,22	43:13 44:21,22
33:19 34:1,21	<b>today</b> 8:6 9:13	18:3,4 19:9	29:15 30:21	<b>violations</b> 43:7
34:23 45:20	11:15 33:14	35:19 39:5	31:18 32:3	43:14,23 44:21
<b>thing</b> 20:2 28:11	42:11 47:2	44:14	34:16 37:6,12	<b>vulnerable</b>
48:9	<b>today's</b> 5:15	<b>unconstitution...</b>	48:15	48:14
<b>things</b> 9:11	9:17	17:16,18 35:6	<b>uses</b> 4:8 5:18	<hr/>
11:18 14:4	<b>Tom</b> 47:4	35:15	9:17,21,23	<b>W</b>
15:4,6 16:3,20	<b>Tony</b> 5:16 8:17	<b>undercover</b>	10:10,20 11:17	<b>wait</b> 16:6,6
17:2,3 18:24	19:13 28:24	42:24 43:8	12:21,23 13:14	<b>wake</b> 11:20 16:4
20:6,16 21:4	46:22	<b>understand</b> 6:12	13:19 14:6,7,8	25:4
22:3 23:14	<b>tools</b> 5:22 8:15	7:6,12 8:1 24:4	14:11,12,14,14	<b>walk</b> 10:21
25:18 26:4	28:3	43:19	14:20,21,22,24	<b>wall</b> 32:23
27:20 28:6	<b>Tornatore</b> 2:5	<b>understanding</b>	15:11 16:1,10	<b>want</b> 9:5 10:7,9
36:16 48:11	3:10,11	7:11 30:24	16:22 17:1,16	12:2 27:20,23
49:5	<b>tossed</b> 37:8	<b>undertook</b> 34:18	17:20 18:4,7	32:19 38:21
<b>think</b> 6:22 7:23	<b>total</b> 5:4,4	<b>undue</b> 4:14	18:10 19:2,3,4	40:13 46:21
8:11 11:21	<b>trafficked</b> 48:22	<b>unincorporated</b>	19:5,15,21,22	47:7,21 48:10
15:23 22:12	49:1	4:8 11:24 12:3	19:24,24 20:1	49:7
23:17 28:9,19	<b>trafficking</b> 6:15	12:4 15:13,19	20:3,9,20	<b>wanted</b> 38:6,7
48:16,21	22:7,15 42:16	15:20,21 16:22	21:24 22:3,9	39:3
<b>thinking</b> 37:16	48:11	30:1 36:11	22:16 23:15,18	<b>wants</b> 47:13
<b>thorough</b> 36:9	<b>transcribed</b> 5:8	<b>unique</b> 20:16	25:7,11,16	<b>Washington</b>
<b>thoughts</b> 3:23	9:4	<b>unrelated</b> 41:13	27:22 31:17	21:12,13,13
<b>thousands</b> 43:20	<b>transcript</b> 50:8	<b>unsuccessful</b>	32:4 33:9,15	<b>way</b> 12:11 13:6
43:20	<b>transcripts</b> 9:8	34:12	34:20,22 35:2	16:7 41:1
<b>three</b> 17:21	<b>transformed</b> 7:1	<b>unsuspecting</b>	35:11 42:19	44:11,12
20:13 39:22	<b>transmitted</b>	20:19	44:7	<b>wayside</b> 46:1
43:18	31:11	<b>updating</b> 18:6	<b>usual</b> 50:3	<b>we'll</b> 9:7
<b>three-minute</b>	<b>troubling</b> 48:12	<b>urge</b> 7:9,20	<b>Usually</b> 16:7	<b>we're</b> 8:16 9:19
6:4	<b>true</b> 26:10 50:8	<b>use</b> 11:6,14 12:7	<hr/>	9:20 17:23
<b>thresholds</b> 35:7	<b>try</b> 13:10 16:15	12:10,10,16	<b>V</b>	18:20 20:1
<b>threw</b> 32:12	26:5	13:1,2,3,9,15	<b>v</b> 34:11 37:23	21:17 30:14,15
<b>till</b> 29:11	<b>Tuesdays</b> 4:16	13:15,16,21,23	38:9,9,10,15	30:16,17 31:4
<b>Tim</b> 2:6 6:17	<b>two</b> 9:15 14:2	14:5,10,20	<b>value</b> 12:16	32:2 44:16
<b>time</b> 3:3 5:12,12	17:21 19:21	15:9 16:16,19	<b>values</b> 12:17	48:8,16 49:5
8:18 11:2,19	23:6 25:1,11	17:13 18:1,12	13:20	<b>we've</b> 12:2 14:2
12:18 17:19	28:10 43:17	19:18,20 20:15	<b>vandalism</b> 21:4	15:18 16:14
19:12 24:3	<b>type</b> 16:22 18:20	20:18,18,21,22	<b>various</b> 9:18	31:19,20 48:5
33:20 36:12,12	21:19 23:12	20:23 21:2	19:22	<b>wealth</b> 48:3,19
37:20,20 40:9	26:18 29:14,15	22:10,11 23:2	<b>verbatim</b> 9:8	<b>websites</b> 37:3,5
40:15,17 45:1	39:7	23:11,13,13,23	<b>viable</b> 27:19	<b>Wednesday</b> 6:14

6:15	<b>years'</b> 31:20	40:22 43:17,23	<b>416</b> 33:6
<b>week</b> 6:14 43:15	<b>York</b> 38:17,21	<b>10-year</b> 30:4	<b>421</b> 1:10
43:20,21 45:1	<b>Young</b> 37:23	<b>11</b> 16:21 19:15	<b>432</b> 6:8
45:2	<hr/> <b>Z</b> <hr/>	<b>12</b> 16:21 19:15	<hr/> <b>5</b> <hr/>
<b>weeks</b> 21:6,8	<b>Zay</b> 2:4 3:8,9	<b>12:30</b> 1:6 3:3	<b>5/5-1097.7</b> 44:17
<b>weigh</b> 3:23	28:5 42:10	4:16 49:19,20	<b>50</b> 30:3
<b>welcome</b> 5:5	<b>ZBA</b> 31:15	<b>12th</b> 49:18	<b>500</b> 43:15,21
<b>welfare</b> 12:15,22	<b>Zebulon</b> 19:19	<b>15</b> 33:12	<b>501</b> 6:9
<b>went</b> 11:6 35:11	34:11,13	<b>18</b> 23:11,11 24:5	<b>525,000</b> 26:11
<b>weren't</b> 18:13	<b>zoned</b> 33:7	24:18	<b>55</b> 44:17
46:6	<b>zoning</b> 2:11 5:20	<b>1986</b> 19:19	<hr/> <b>6</b> <hr/>
<b>west</b> 17:10 47:24	5:21 7:10,11	34:10,20 35:24	<hr/> <b>7</b> <hr/>
48:17 49:8,9	7:13 8:13,14	42:7	<hr/> <b>8</b> <hr/>
<b>wetland</b> 32:21	9:21 10:7,10	<b>1990</b> 29:9	<hr/> <b>9</b> <hr/>
32:21	10:16,24 11:1	<b>1990s</b> 15:7 16:21	<hr/> <b>90,000</b> 15:18
<b>Wheaton</b> 1:11	11:3,10 12:7,9	16:21 33:21	
6:8,24,24 7:16	12:13,14,16,19	<b>1995</b> 29:10	
7:16 15:23	13:16 14:5,6,7	<b>1997</b> 34:20	
<b>whittled</b> 20:3	14:10,16 15:2	<b>1998</b> 34:23	
<b>willing</b> 38:6	15:4 16:18,23	<hr/> <b>2</b> <hr/>	
<b>windows</b> 7:1,3	17:4,17,18,22	<b>2</b> 23:22 24:1	
<b>witnesses</b> 5:1,14	18:2,6,8,8,14	<b>20</b> 33:12	
8:22 42:4	20:2,7,12 23:3	<b>2000s</b> 11:7 15:7	
<b>wondering</b>	23:6,7,16	33:22	
26:17	25:14,24 26:6	<b>2001</b> 29:11,13	
<b>word</b> 30:16	26:23 27:8,8,9	<b>2002</b> 35:19 42:8	
48:15	27:10 28:3	<b>2004</b> 18:6	
<b>words</b> 35:11	29:8 30:10	<b>2005</b> 19:12	
<b>work</b> 23:1 42:16	31:9,12,12,13	<b>2010</b> 29:13	
45:5 46:23,24	31:14,24 32:5	<b>2016</b> 47:24 48:7	
<b>working</b> 17:5	32:18 33:5,7	<b>2019</b> 1:5	
19:23 20:1	34:9,13,19	<b>24</b> 30:19	
47:8	35:6,8,17 36:1	<b>24-hour</b> 18:10	
<b>written</b> 5:6,9	36:2,13 40:17	<b>27</b> 11:2,17	
<hr/> <b>X</b> <hr/>	42:11,11,16,21	<b>29</b> 1:5	
<hr/> <b>Y</b> <hr/>	43:6,11,13,13	<hr/> <b>3</b> <hr/>	
<b>yeah</b> 8:19 27:18	43:15 44:3,22	<b>3</b> 5:3	
46:18	<hr/> <b>0</b> <hr/>	<b>30</b> 5:4 36:10	
<b>year</b> 4:6 17:21	<b>01/29/19</b> 23:22	<hr/> <b>4</b> <hr/>	
42:8	<hr/> <b>1</b> <hr/>	<b>4</b> 33:5	
<b>years</b> 11:2,17	<b>1</b> 23:22,24	<b>40</b> 30:3 36:10	
33:21	<b>1,000</b> 19:4 40:22	<b>40,000</b> 15:23	